
Agenda of the Belton City Council 
Work Session & Regular Meeting 

May 14, 2019 - 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Annex 

520 Main Street, Belton, Missouri 

I. CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER 

II. ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 

A. Stormwater Management Program Plan Presentation 

The plan will also be available on the City's website. 

III. ADJOURN WORK SESSION 

IV. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

V. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE-Councilman VanWinkle 

VI. ROLL CALL 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

One motion, non-debatable, to approve the "recommendations" noted. Any member of the 
Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and separate 
action. 

A. Motion approving the minutes of the April 23, 2019, City Council Work Session and 
Regular Meeting. 

Page6 

B. Motion authorizing the sale of surplus city inventory/personal property by Mayo 
Auction & Realty. 

Page 11 

C. Motion authorizing the purchase of a DR3900 Spectrophotometer Micro Distillation 
Kit for $11,199.81. This purchase is included in the FY2020 budget. 

Page 13 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 1 



D. Motion approving Resolution R2019-41 
A resolution authorizing and directing the Custodian of Records of the City of 
Belton, Missouri to destroy certain records that have exceeded the retention 
requirements as set forth by the State of Missouri. 

Page 16 

E. Motion approving Resolution R2019-42 
A resolution approving Task Agreement No. 2020-1 with FTC Equipment, LLC to 
replace Service Pump #2 and purchase an additional backup pump for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $22,607.36. 

Page 20 

F. Motion approving Resolution R2019-43 
A resolution approving Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. to 
replace the motor end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7 in the amount of 
$28,469.00. 

Page 27 

G. Motion approving Resolution R2019-44 
A resolution reappointing George Shurm and Rusty Sullivan and appointing 
Zebadiah Morlok and Jennifer Garner to the Municipal Park Board. 

Page 32 

H. Motion approving Resolution R2019-45 
A resolution appointing Directors to the Board of Directors of the Y Belton Two 
Community Improvement District. 

Page 37 

I. Motion approving Resolution R2019-46 
A resolution authorizing an agreement with Opencities, Inc. for website publishing, 
management and hosting services for the City of Belton. 

The FY2020 budget includes funds for a City website upgrade. After looking at multiple 
options, staff has determined that OpenCities is the best solution for citizens. Staff desires 
to have a website for residents, visitors, and staff that will transform their interactions 
with the City. OpenCities will provide a. full-featured, mobile and accessible design to 
allow users to easily find information they are looking for and allow them to pay tickets 
and utility bills, begin utility service, find jobs, and see what news or events are 
happening in our community. 

Page 41 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 2 



VIII. PERSONAL APPEARANCES 

A. Proclamation for Peace Officers Memorial Day and Police Week 

B. Mark Miller, 505 Silverado/14707 S. Benton- recycling 

IX. ORDINANCES 

A. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2019-26 
An ordinance approving the Reappropriation & Revision of the City of Belton 
Fiscal Year 2020 adopted City Budget. 

This ordinance will amend the FY20 budget to reflect the City's actual cash carryover 
balance in each fund as of April 1, 2019 and will also reappropriate funds in the FY20 
budget that were approved in the FYl 9 budget but were not completed before the year 
end. 

Page 63 

B. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2019-27 
An ordinance approving the Final Plat of Southview Commerce Center South 2nd 
Plat located NW ¼ and SW ¼, Sec, 1, T46n, R33w, in the City of Belton, Cass 
County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the plat for 
recording with the Cass County Recorder's office. 

Page 72 

X. RESOLUTIONS 

XL CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

XII. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

XIII. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

May & June 2019 meetings 
05/28 work session & regular meeting - 6:00 p.m. 
06/11 work session & regular meeting - 6:00 p.m. 
06/25 work session & regular meeting- 6:00 p.m. 

XIV. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Request for Records Fee Waiver 

Page 79 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 3 



XV. Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to negotiated contracts, 
according to Missouri Statute 610.021.12; matters pertaining to the leasing, purchase or sale 
of Real Estate, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.2; matters pertaining to Legal Actions, 
according to Missouri Statute 610. 021.1; and matters pertaining · to the hiring, firing, 
disciplining-or promotion of personnel, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.3, and that the 
record be closed, and the meeting adjourn from there. 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. . 4 



SECTION VII 
A 

5 



Minutes of the Belton City Council 
Work Session & Regular Meeting 

April 23, 2019 
City Hall Annex 

520 Main Street, Belton, Missouri 

Mayor Davis called the work session to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Padraic Corcoran, Attorney, presented a City Council orientation. 

Carolyn Yatsook, Economic Development Director, informed the City Council the Y Highway 
Marketplace TIF has a potential letter of intent for a business. There will be more to come on this 
at a later date. 

Being no further business, Mayor Davis adjourned the work session at 6:52 p.m. and called the 
regular meeting to order. 

Councilman Trutzel led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Councilmembers present: Mayor Davis, Tim Savage, Chet Trutzel, Dean Van Winkle, Ryan Finn, 
Gary Lathrop, Stephanie Davidson, Dave Clark, and Lorrie Peek 

Staff present: Alexa Barton, City Manager; Padraic Corcoran, Attorney; and Andrea 
Cunningham, City Clerk 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Mayor Davis stated we need to remove the following motion from the consent agenda - Motion 
approving the purchase of a 2019 Ford F250, Regular Cab, 4x4 vehicle for the Public 
Works Department. There will be more information about this item at a future meeting. 

Councilman Lathrop asked for R2019-36 and R2019-37 to be taken from the consent agenda for 
discussion and separate action. 

Councilman Van Winkle moved to approve the remaining consent agenda consisting of a motion: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

approving the minutes of the April 9, 2019, City Council Work Session and Regular 
Meeting. 
approving the February 2019 and March 2019 Municipal Division Summary Reports for 
Municipal Court. 
approving Resolution R2019-35: A resolution appointing Dean Van Winkle to serve as 
the City Council Liaison to the Public Safety Sales Tax Oversight Committee. 
approving Resolution R2019-38: A resolution authorizing the City Council of Belton, 
Missouri to reappoint Ron Branan, Fred Hastie, and Pete Peterson and to appoint 
Tom MacPherson to the Tax Increment Financing Commission. *There was a 
scrivener's error in the resolution presented. The error did not affect the content of the 
resolution. The signed resolution has been amended. 
approving Resolution R2019-39: A resolution authorizing and approving a renewal of 
the Food Service Agreement between the City of Belton, Missouri and Belton 
Regional Medical Center, for food services to Belton jail prisoners. 

6 



• approving Resolution R2019-40: A resolution authorizing the City of Belton, Missouri 
through its Police Department to renew the software subscription with Omnigo 
Software. *There was a scrivener's error in the title that was presented. The resolution 
presented was correct. The minutes reflect the corrected title. 

Councilwoman Peek seconded. All voted in favor. Consent agenda approved. 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, read Resolution R2019-36: A resolution of the City of 
Belton, Missouri, approving the renewal of a contract with Earthworks Excavation and 
Associates, LLC, for a term of one (1) year with the option of up to one (1) additional one 
year renewal for demolition of dangerous residential structures services on an as needed 
basis. 
Councilman Lathrop asked about the rate. It wasn't presented in the renewal materials. Alexa 
Barton, City Manager, said the rate didn't go up. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by 
Councilman Trutzel. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all voting in favor. Resolution 
passed. 

Ms. Cunningham read Resolution R2019-37: A resolution of the City of Belton, Missouri 
authorizing and approving the Service Agreement between the Institute for Building 
Technology and Safety and the City of Belton, Missouri for a term of two (2) years and the 
automatic renewal and extension of an additional two (2) years until either jurisdiction 
terminates the service agreement with a 90-day written notice of termination in advance of 
the expiration. 
Councilman Lathrop asked about the cost difference between residential and commercial 
reviews. Dave Clements, Planning Director, said commercial reviews are more extensive _and 
detailed. Councilman Clark asked if we're ultimately planning to fill the vacant position. Ms. 
Barton said yes, we just need this service in the interim. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, 
seconded by Councilwoman Peek. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all voting in favor. 
Resolution passed. 

PERSONAL APPEARANCES 

Councilwoman Davidson read and presented the 2019 Arbor Day Proclamation to the Park 
Department. 

ORDINANCES 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2019-24: An ordinance approving the Avid Hotel - Belton a 
tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 46 North, Range 33 
West, in the City of Belton, Cass County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the plat for recording with the Cass County Recorder's office. 
Presented by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilman Lathrop. Councilman Clark asked if 
there was a TIF associated with this hotel. Ms. Barton said no. Vote on the first reading was 
recorded with all voting in favor. First reading passed. Councilman Trutzel moved to hear 
the final reading. Councilman Lathrop seconded. Vote to hear the final reading was 
recorded with all voting in favor. Motion passed. The final reading was read. Presented by 
Councilwoman Peek, seconded by Councilman Finn. Vote on the final reading was 
recorded: 
Ayes: 9 Lathrop, Finn, Peek, Savage, Trutzel, Davidson, Clark, Van Winkle, Mayor Davis 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 0 

7 



Bill No. 2019-24 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2019-4511, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 

Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2019-25: An ordinance amending Chapter 14 - Nuisances, 
Section 14-5( d) - right of entry for purposes of enforcement, of the Belton Code of 
Ordinances, as it relates to the execution of administrative warrants for the abatement of 
nuisances. 
Presented by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilwoman Peek. Vote on the first reading 
was recorded with all voting in favor. First reading passed. Councilman Lathrop moved to 
hear the final reading. Councilwoman Peek seconded. Vote to hear the final reading was 
recorded with all voting in favor. Motion passed. The final reading was read. Presented by 
Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilwoman Peek. Vote on the final reading was 
recorded: 
Ayes: 9 Mayor Davis, Davidson, Clark, Finn, Trutzel, Lathrop, Savage, Van Winkle, Peek 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 0 
Bill No. 2019-25 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2019-4512, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

Councilwoman Davidson gave a Park report 
• Easter egg hunt last weekend. It was well attended. 
• Paint party on May 1 at Memorial Station 
• Princess party on June 1 at High Blue Wellness Center 
• Big Bounce America on May 17-19 at Wallace Park. Tickets online. 
• Summerfest on June 15 at Memorial Station 

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

Belton Cares is accepting cash donations for the afte:r graduation party on May 9. 

BCPI is accepting donations for repairs to the museum. 

Councilman Lathrop said last week a bus from McAlester, OK, broke down at Cracker Barrel. 
The manager fed them all for free while they waited for repairs. 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

There was good turnout for the stream clean up event. 

Is there interest by the Council to have a City Council picture taken? We haven't done it in quite 
a few years. Yes, we will plan to do this May 14. 

May & June 2019 meetings 
05/14 work session & regular meeting- 6:00 p.m. 
05/28 work session & regular meeting- 6:00 p.m. 
06/11 work session & regular meeting - 6:00 p.m. 
06/25 work session & regular meeting- 6:00 p.m. 

8 



OTHER BUSINESS 

Councilman Clark asked about our sign ordinance. Mr. Clements said corner signs are not 
allowed and staff do pick them up while they're out in town. 

Councilman Lathrop said he was contacted by someone on Allen Ave about the dirt being moved 
by Northpoint and it potentially coming down into the creek. 

At 7:28 p.m. Councilman VanWinkle moved to enter Executive Session to discuss matters 
pertaining to the leasing, purchase or sale of Real Estate, according to Missouri Statute 
610.021.2; matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1; and that 
the record be closed and the meeting adjourn from there. Councilman Lathrop seconded. The 
following vote was recorded: 
Ayes: 9 Trutzel, Finn, Van Winkle, Savage, Peek, Davidson, Clark, Lathrop, Mayor Davis 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 0 

Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned following the executive session. 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk Mayor Jeff Davis 

9 



,• ·.~-: 
~~ ---

SECTION VII 
B-

10 



Items ready for Auction - 5/14/19 

Park Department 

Item 

GM Dumptruck 

Gravely Mower 

Gravely Mower 

Kinesis Wall System by Technogym 

Kinesis Wall System by Technogym 

Kinesis Wall System by Technogym 

Kinesis Wall System by Technogym 

Admln - City Hall 

Item 
Wall art 

metal magazine holder 

Serial Number 

1GBP7H1J1U202137 

992239-000215 

992239-000240 

A0000197AA-1 DELTA 

A0000206AA-1 GAMMA 

A0000207AA-1 BETA 

A0000204AA-1 ALPHA 

11 



SECTION VII 
C 

12 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

PUBllC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2019 

COUNCIL: [8J Regular Meeting 

D Ordinance 
D A reement 

0 Resolution 
D Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

DIVISION: Water Services/ Wastewater Treatment Plant 

D Work Session 

[8J Consent Item 
0 FYI/U date 

D Special Session 

D Chan e Order [8J Motion 
D Presentation D Both Readin s 

Wastewater Treatment Plant staff is currently using an Ion Sensing Electrode (ISE) for determining 
ammonia readings in the wastewater effluent. ISE equipment is difficult to maintain and calibrate. Staff 
recommends replacing the ISE with a DR3900 spectrophotometer system which uses light wave 
frequency and is much more user friendly and reliable. The DR3900 tests for many additional 
constituents besides ammonia, including phosphorous, nitrates, nitrites, and Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(COD), and the manufacturer includes step-by-step instructions and online videos for assisting in 
training. 

Three bid proposals were received for the spectrophotometer system and HACH Company had the 
lowest and best bid. Staff recommends approval to purchase a DR3900 Spectrophotometer, Micro 
Distillation Kit, and related supplies from the HACH Company in the amount of $11,199.81 (including 
$189.40 for shipping). This purchase was included and approved in the FY2020 budget. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: HACH Company 
Amount of Request/Contract: I $ 11 ,199.81 (includes $189.40 shipping) 
Amount Budgeted: I$ 19,000.00 
Funding Source: 660-0000-495-7400 WW 2010 
Additional Funds: I$ n/a 
Funding Source: n/a 
Encumbered: I $ n/a 
Funds Remaining: I $ 7,800.19 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Staff recommends approval to purchase a DR3900 Spectrophotometer, Micro Distillation Kit, and 
related supplies from the HACH Company in the amount of $11 ,199.81. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Spectrophotometer Quotes Summary 

!:\Agenda Items\2019\051419 - WS & RS\RS\WWTP HACH Spectrophotometer Purchase RS 05.14.19\ 1. 
Spectrophotometer Purchase Council Info Form RS 05 .14.19.d.® 



Spectrophotometer Kit 

Item 
DR3900 Spectrophotometer 
Ammonia TNT ULR 
Ammonia TNT LR 
Ammonia TNT HR 
PiEet. 1.0-5.0 
Pipet TiES for 1.0-5.0 pipets 
Tenset Pipet 1.0-10.0 
Pipet Ties for Tenset 

Subtotal 
Shipping (if supplied) 

Micro Distillation Kit 

Item 
KTO: Micro Distillation with Acc. 

*Training CD 
* User Manuals 
* MD tubes, user fill pk/10 
* ACSS Kit, MD-Digital 
* Micro-Dist-Digital, 110 V 

Tubes, Micro-dist; pk/50 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Subtotal $ 

Shipping (if supplied) $ 

TOTAL (not including Shipping) $ 

Quote Summary 

HACH Core &Main Thomas 
4,373.80 $ 5,416.48 $ 4,543.42 

55.57 $ 68.82 $ 62.67 

55.57 $ 68.82 $. 62.67 

55.57 $ 68.82 $ 62.67 

281.20 $ 348.24 $ 296.00 

30.35 $ 37.59 $ 34.23 

288.80 $ 357.65 $ 316.67 
12.21 $ 15.12 $ 13.77 

5,153.07 $ 6,381.54 $ 5,392.10 
94.70 

BACH · Core&Main Thomas 

5,531.00 $ 6,507.06 $ 6,584.52 

326.34 $ 518.83 $ 551.25 
5,857.34 $ 7,025.89 $ 7,135.77 

94.70 

ll,010.41 $ 13,407.43 $ 12,527.87 

14 



SECTION VII 
D 

15 



R2019-41 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CUSTODIAN OF 
RECORDS OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI TO DESTROY CERTAIN 
RECORDS THAT HAVE EXCEEDED THE RETENTION REQUIREMENTS AS SET 
FORTH BY THE STATE OF MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, the 73 rd General Assembly passed the law establishing Records Management and 
Archives Services as a division of the Office of Secretary of State; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill No. 376 passed by the 76th General Assembly extended the Records 
Management Law to local governments of Missouri, which law gave the Secretary of State 
responsibility for implementation of the program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton desires to securely destroy certain records that have exceeded 
the retention requirement as set forth by RSMo 190.230( 4) and the published Missouri Secretary 
of State Local Records Retention Schedules; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-227 of the Belton Code of Ordinances provides for the City Clerk to be 
the Custodian of Records and shall be responsible for maintenance and control of all records. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Clerk is authorized to utilize Underground Vaults & Storage, Inc in 
Kansas City, Missouri to destroy certain records that have exceeded the retention requirements as 
set forth by the State of Missouri. The records are listed as Exhibit A to this resolution. 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

Duly read and passed this __ day of __ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

16 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed 
City Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was 
regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of 
_, 2019, and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the _day of 
_, 2019 by the following vote, to~wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 

17 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 



Park Department - Record Retention 5/14/19 
Retention Destroy Box 

Description Year Retention Requirement Code Date ID# 

Wallace Phase II 2008 10 years after occupancy GS 099 2018 2018-14 

Memberships 2015 3 Years GS065 2018 2018-30.4 

2014 3 Years GS065 2017 2018-30.5 

2012 3 Years GS065 2015 2018-30.6 

2009 3 Years GS065 2012 2018-30.7 

2010 3 Years GS065 2013 2018-30.8 

2009 3 Years GS065 2012 2018-30.9 

2007 3 Years GS065 2011 2018-30.10 

2007 3 Years GS065 2011 2018-30.11 

2011 3 Years GS065 2014 2018-30.12 

2012 3 Years GS065 2015 2018-30.15 

2012-2015 3 Years GS065 2018 2018-30.16 

2013-2015 3 Years GS065 2018 2018-30.17 

2012 3 Years GS065 2015 2018-30.18 

Purchase Orders 2014-2017 Completion of Audit GS 007 2017 2018-34 

Receipts 2017 Completion of Audit GS 008 2018 2018-45 

2009 Completion of Audit GS 008 2010 2018-46.6 

Deposits July 2010-May 2017 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GSOlO May-18 2018-53 

2010-2016 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GSOlO 2018 2018-54 

Jul-OS Completion of Audit+ 1 year GSOlO 2011 2018-56.2 

2011 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GS 010 2013 2018-56.3 

2011 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GS 010 2013 2018-56.4 

2012 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GS 010 2014 2018-56.5 

2012 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GS 010 2014 2018-56.6 

2012 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GSOlO 2014 2018-56.7 

2008/2009 Completion of Audit+ 1 year GSOlO 2011 2018-56.8 

Billing Logs 2016 Completion of Audit GS008 2018 2018-63.2 

Expenditures 2011 Completion of Audit GS007 2018 2018-66.2 

Credit Cards 2014 Completion of Audit GS008 2016 2018-69.2 

2008 Completion of Audit GS008 2010 2018-69.3 

2009 Completion of Audit GS008 2011 2018-69.4 

2009 Completion of Audit GS 008 2011 2018-69.5 

Employee 

Applications 2013 3 Years GS062 2016 2018-70.2 

2011 3 Years GS 062 2015 2018-70.3 

1987 3 Years GS062 1991 2018-70.4 

2014 3 Years GS 062 2017 2018-70.5 
18 



SECTION VII 
E 

19 



R2019-42 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT NO. 2020-1 WITH FTC 
EQUIPMENT, LLC TO REPLACE SERVICE PUMP #2 AND PURCHASE AN 
ADDITIONAL BACKUP PUMP FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $22,607.36. 

WHEREAS, there are currently two pumps that supply non-potable water to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) for washdowns and solids processing. These pumps are essential to the 
daily operations at the WWTP. Earlier in 2019, Service Pumps #1 and #2 began having issues 
and Service Pump #1 was replaced as approved by City Council per Resolution R2019-19; and 

WHEREAS, Service Pump # 2 at the WWTP is out of service. Service Pump # 2 was installed 
in 2012 and runs about 4,400 hours per year. Although this pump was installed in 2012, it has 
seen- a dramatic rise in runtime since the completion of the latest plant upgrades in 2017. The 
estimated repair cost is $11,570.00 to $13,462.62. After evaluating the pump and repair costs, 
Staff recommends that this pump be replaced instead of repaired. 

Bids were requested from the City's On-Call Pump Repair and Service contractors. Each 
contractor submitted a pump with the same specifications. Bids ranged from $16,000 to $30,674 
with FTC Equipment, LLC (FTC) submitting the lowest and best bid of $16,000. FTC also 
provided a discounted cost of $22,607.36 for the City to purchase two pumps so that one could 
be used as a backup. Based on the cost savings, Staff recommends approving the purchase of two 
pumps from FTC to replace Service Pump #2 and provide a backup; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes approving Task Agreement No. 2020-1 with FTC 
Equipment, LLC in the amount of $22,607.36 to replace Service Pump #2 and purchase an 
additional backup pump for the WWTP is beneficial to the citizens of Belton and the wastewater 
treatment system. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That Task Agreement No. 2020-1 with FTC Equipment, LLC for replacement of 
Service Pump #2 and purchase of a backup pump for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, herein attached and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is 
approved. 

SECTION 2. The City Manager and Director of Public Works are authorized and directed to 
execute the Task Agreement on behalf of the City. 

SECTION 3. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval by the City of Belton. 

20 



Duly read and passed this ___ day of ___ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

ST ATE OF MISSOURJ) 
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS. 
CITY OF BELTON ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the _ _ day of _ _, 2019, and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held the _ _ _ day of _ _ , 2019 by the following vote, 
to-wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

21 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

PUBLIC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2019 

COUNCIL: 1:8:J Regular Meeting 

D Ordinance [ZI Resolution 
D A reement D Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

D Work Session 

[ZI Consent Item 
0 FYI/U date 

DIVISION: Water Services 

D Special Session 

D Chan e Order D Motion 
D Presentation D Both Readin s 

There are currently two pumps that supply non-potable water to the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) for washdowns and solids processing. These pumps are essential to the daily operations at the 

WWTP. Earlier in 2019, Service Pumps #1 and #2 began having issues and Service Pump #1 was 
replaced as approved by City Council per Resolution R2019-19. 

Service Pump # 2 at the WWTP is now out of service and requires replacement. Service Pump # 2 was 
installed in 2012 and runs about 4,400 hours per year. Although this pump was installed in 2012, it has 
seen a dramatic rise in runtime since the completion of the latest plant upgrades in 2017. The estimated 

repair cost is $11,570.00 to $13,462.62. After evaluating the pump and repair costs, Staff recommends 

that this pump be replaced instead of repaired. 

Bids were requested from the City's On-Call Pump Repair and Service contractors. Each contractor 
submitted a pump with the same specifications. Bids ranged from $16,000 to $30,674 with FTC 
Equipment, LLC (FTC) submitting the lowest and best bid of $16,000. FTC also provided a discounted 
cost of $22,607.36 for the City to purchase two pumps so that one could be used as a backup. Based on 
the cost savings, Staff recommends approving the purchase of two pumps from FTC to replace Service 
Pump #2 and provide a backup. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: FTC Equipment, LLC 
Amount of Request/Contract: I $ 22,607.36 
Amount Budgeted: I $ 102,852.52 
Funding Source: 660-0000-400-2020 Plant Maintenance 
Additional Funds: I $ n/a 
Funding Source: n/a 
Encumbered: I $ n/a 
Funds Remaining: I $ 80,245.16 

!:\Agenda ltems\2019\051419 - WS & RS\RS\WWTP Service Water Pump #2 Replacement RS 05.14.19\1. WWTP Service 
Water Pump #2 Replacement RS 05.14.19.doc 22 



STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Approve a resolution approving Task Agreement No. 2020-1 with FTC Equipment, LLC to replace 
Service Pump #2 and purchase an additional backup pump for the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the 
amount of $22,607.36. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution 
Service Pump #2 Replacement Quotes Summary 
Exhibit A - FTC Equipment, LLC Task Agreement No. 2020-1 

I:\Agenda Items\2019\051419 - WS & RS\RS\WWTP Service Water Pump #2 Replacement RS 05.14.19\1. WWTP Service 
Water Pump #2 Replacement RS 05.14.19.doc 23 



Quote Summary 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Service Water Pump #2 Replacement 

Comean~ Brand Name Price Pume 

JCI Industries, Inc. Barnes -40 HP - 3Ph - 460 V- 86 psi output $30,674.00 1 

Fluid Equipment Barnes -40 HP - 3Ph -460 V- 86 psi output $ 23,452.00 1 

FTC Equipment, LLC Sulzer (ABS) - 40 HP - 3Ph - 460 V - 86 psi output $22,607.36 2 

FTC Equipment, LLC Sulzer (ABS) - 40 HP - 3Ph - 460 V- 86 psi output $16,000.00 1 

24 



-------------···---- --

PUllll O WOHKS 
City of Belton - Public Works 

Task Agreement 

····- - ---- .. . -·----

--------·-- -------. 

Co,ltr;,r;:: li\llll{,t unu Wm,lnwat(;r r,,111;.,rr:1; ,::.y,,li::i11 S1:rvlca Controct- coop with l{Cl\·10 

,- --- --- - ·~-----·- -

Ordlnanr.o t'.lr Rr~slJl~llion: N/1\ 

1-----------···- ···-··-·----· 
Project Titlo: Hoplaco,nirnl 8er'llco 1.'Vnt-,r flurnp ii 2 

Funding Amount:$ 22, 607,30 

Dote of Schedule of 
Houtly Ratmi and Exponsos: 

Purchase Orclr.r No: 

··- - -- ------ ···----· -·- ·· T---· 
ConlracloriConsull1.1nt (lm:luding ~\,IJ',): 1 Di11isllm .incl Stuff Project Managor: Rox Ollngar 

-... -.. ----.. --
'Lv __ ,,_,,_t_~_1r.So1viccg Manag_er- Don Tyler, Jr. FTC Equlprnllnl, LLC 

t----------- -- ------ - ------------! 
Pr~)llcl Manat1,1ment Manmi/ rovj1.)\lle<!; ·-··· ··· ····----··------_j Aflnchmonls (G!lnll Cha_,1._0_1_c._):_1n_v_o_1c_e __________ _ 

PROJ~CT S<iopo (can ha- In lh,J form v/- an ;iitn,;t11n,311l): 

Provide all Labor, Equlpmanl, Mulmi:1!5 nm! Sl1µpllO$ fm Um omerne,iny rL1 f)lc1 ,:crnr.nl or !Jflrvlce pu111r # 2 for :.i total of$ 22, 607.36. 

_ _ .. ,____ ---· _____ til:rff Sinn,1lurr1s ··--·- ----·-- · --T· ~---·---· Partner Slgnaturns 

Dlr~tor of Public Worl~:it Icily r·.'lun;igm: f>rojact Ma11t1;1ar: Fr{,.. 'G'r7v•fil•l• + Company Principal (lf dlffeto1lt): 
Cella Duran Mm::u Borton ., .. ,- -~ {.,J , I{ 

f•l/f/ .~tlvt,,'lll< 

Slgnnl1110:~2- ~11•'11uro: t-Sl_l!l_lu-!1!{!1-,;;-.c_:·•·z---~-A"l _-$,...1.- -~-;·-, --/,-,. /-/-+-Sl-,n-u-lur-0,---------

---\.--.,·v'<.:'tl ~ -~.r,_er.._ 
Uolo:_ sJ (t_ . .?--OJ 9--·-· rJ010 . ·----· - ---··· .•.. .~:.::'.e.p.{up..1,. ____ .. l)olu; 

Projoct Type:-=== D~;:lgn ·--:] ~-- --~ -~~~lrt:i~=-T~~-i .... l};:;~;i~ii~~~- -~;;,-,~
9
-~-lu.La-J _----~S-urv- ey-t:ng:~~~---1 

Proje,;\ Disclpllnc(s): T1~m,1iort,11,011 1 
Plrn111fng ___ t-_ __ j :~~~~ Wastowntor X Stonnwater 

- ·-- ·-- - ----------------
Report(n) Roc0iv0d: 

----···--·· ... -····-----·------------·-----
Worl1 on File: 

t--·------·--·--·- · ----·-·-- -~ •··-·--·· - ·-· - -····---·-·- ··-·-·---- . ------- -----------
'l'hls Tc111Jc Ar;re0il1,~nt if> subj,~cl to nil llw pro•1i1;!onn i11c;l1Jded in !Im ,u.pr;,tl:iwr,t, Walm and w~~:;tewater Purnplno System Sel'l/lce Contract, 
R2O1O-6. ElWCu1ed O'l/09/2O10. F{on,;wHd 01/22/20HI. 

Al.l ai:::h scoµ0 or work, budget, anrl nther supporUng mnlorlol. 

25 



SECTION VII 
F 

26 



R2019-43 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT NO. 2019-2 WITH JCI 
INDUSTRIES, INC. TO REPLACE THE MOTOR END SHAFT AND BEARINGS FOR 
AERATOR #7 IN THE AMOUNT OF $28,469.00. 

WHEREAS, the Wastewater Treatment Plant uses aerators as part of its operations that are 
essential to the treatment of sewage by providing oxygen and mixing in the biological treatment 
basin. During plant daily operations, operators discovered that the bearing for the motor end of 
Aerator 7 had gone out. On further inspection, it was determined that the shaft was also damaged 
and worn to the point that the bearing could not be replaced; and 

WHEREAS, Staff requested quotes from the City's three On-Call Pump Repair and Service 
contractors (R2019-12) to replace the motor end shaft and bearings. Two contractors declined to 
provide quotes. FTC Equipment, LLC responded that they did not believe they could perform this 
work effectively and safely, and Fluid Equipment/Cogent could not obtain a quote from the 
manufacturer for the shaft. Staff recommends approval of Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI 
Industries, Inc. for equipment and labor to replace the motor end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7 
in the amount of $28,469.00; and 

WHEREAS, Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. in the amount of $28,469.00 
is necessary for equipment and labor to replace the motor end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. to replace the motor end 
shaft and bearings for Aerator #7, herein attached and incorporated to this 
Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved for purposes described above. 

SECTION 2. The City Manager and Director of Public Works are authorized and directed to 
execute the task agreement on behalf of the City. 

SECTION 3. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval by the City of Belton. 

27 



Duly read and passed this ___ day of ___ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS. 
CITY OF BELTON ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held the ___ day of __ , 2019 by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

28 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

PUBllC WORKS 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2019 

COUNCIL: IZ] Regular Meeting 

• Ordinance • Resolution 

• Agreement • Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

DIVISION: Water Services/ Wastewater Treatment Plant 

D Work Session D Special Session 

IZJ Consent Item D Change Order I D Motion 
0 FYI/Update D Presentation I D Both Readings 

The Wastewater Treatment Plant uses aerators as part of its operations which are essential to the 
treatment of sewage by providing oxygen and mixing in the biological treatment basin. During plant 
daily operations, operators discovered that the bearing for the motor end of Aerator #7 had gone out. On 
further inspection, it was determined that the shaft was also damaged and worn to the point that the 
bearing could not be replaced. 

Staff requested quotes from the City's three On-Call Pump Repair and Service contractors (R2019-12) 
to replace the motor end shaft and bearings. Two contractors declined to provide quotes. FTC 
Equipment, LLC responded that they did not believe they could perform this work effectively and 
safely, and Fluid Equipment/Cogent could not obtain a quote from the manufacturer for the shaft. Staff 
recommends approval of Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. for equipment and labor 
to replace the motor end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7 in the amount of $28,469.00. Lead time on 
parts is nine (9) weeks from placement of order. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: JCI Industries, Inc. 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 28,469.00 
Amount Budgeted: $ 110,000.00 
Funding Source: 660-0000-400-2020 Plant Maintenance 
Additional Funds: $ n/a 
Funding Source: n/a 
Encumbered: $ n/a 
Funds Remaining: $ 81,531.00 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Staff recommends approval of Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. to replace the motor 
end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7 in the amount of $28,469.00. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution 
JCI Industries, Inc. Task Agreement No. 2019-2 and Scope of Work/Proposal 

I:\Agenda Items\2019\051419 - WS & RS\RS\WWTP Aerator 7 Shaft and Bearings Replacement RS 05.14.19\1. WWTP 
Aerator 7 Shaft & Bearings Replacement Council Info Form i§ 05 . 14.19.doc 

I 
I 



City of Beifon - Public \7Vorks 
Task Agreement 

Conlract: Waler and Wastewater Pumping System Service Contract- COOP witll KCMO 

Ordinance or Resolution; NIA Task Agreement No; TA 2019-2 
Funding Amount: fl/.a- • 2.~, lftpq 
Purchase Order No :n/a 

Project 11tle: ABrator 7 Shaft and Bearing Replacement 

Contraclor/Consult,mt (including subs); JC! lndustri~s, Inc. Div!sion and Staff Project Manager: Rex Olinger 
Water Services- WWTF · 

Project Management Manual reviewed; Altachments (Gantt Ch_art, .etc.): Quote 

PROJECT Scope (can be in the form o.f an altachmr-mt); 

Replaca the motor end sbafl and bearings for aeralor #7. See attached quote for details, $28,469.00 

, 

Staff Signatures Partner Signatures 
Directer of Public Works: City Manager: Project Manager Company Princlpal (If different): 
Celia ·Duran Alexa Barton 

_fl M ,,,.1,- Q'i=,,~r"1'-v,:ki Qixk Hennett 
61gnote~JJ S!gnolutt/h~ _\J~A-J I 

Sig;;;:i1UI"! Slg-noh.'1 ... , ? _,,, 

0,10: 5 I~ Je,WI OJ Oolo. f,2. z..7 /7 -- - , <i.---- --- ..;:: 
Dc.!t:: llol•)qttJ/P:~1..~ 

Project Type: Design Construction Propert,/ Acquisition Conceptuali Problem Solving Sur'leying 

Project Discipline(s): Transportation Planning Waler Waslevr.,ter X · _ Stormwate[ 

Reoort(s) Rece ived; 
Worlcon FIie: 

This Task Agreement is subject to all the provisions included in the 
Agreement Water and Wastewater Pumping System Service 
Contract, R2018-6. Executed o·l/09/201.8. 

Attach scope of work, budget, anc! other supporting mntcrial 

30 



SECTION VII 
G 

31 



R2019-44 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING GEORGE SHURM AND RUSTY SULLIVAN AND 
APPOINTING ZEBADIAH MORLOK AND JENNIFER GARNER TO THE 
MUNICIPAL PARK BOARD. 

WHEREAS, Section 17-40 of the Belton code of Ordinances provides for the appointment of 
nine (9) directors to the Municipal Park Board by the Mayor of the City, subject to the approval 
of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, George Shurm's term expires June 1, 2019; he is hereby reappointed to serve as a 
member of the Park Board until June 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, Rusty Sullivan's term expires June 1, 2019; he is hereby reappointed to serve as a 
member of the Park Board until June 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, Denise Elosh's term expires June 1, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, Zebadiah Morlok is hereby appointed to serve as a member of the Park Board until 
June 1, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, Marvin Mickelson resigned his position on the Park Board effective February 19, 
2019;and 

WHEREAS, Jennifer Garner is hereby appointed to serve as a member of the Park Board to fill 
Marvin Mickelson's unexpired term until June 1, 2020, or until her successor is appointed. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the following named individuals shall constitute the Municipal Park Board 
with terms of office as shown: 

NAME TERM 
David Daniels June 1, 2020 
Jennifer Garner June 1, 2020 
Barbara Miller June 1, 2020 
Charlie Dalzell June 1, 2021 
Mike Miller June 1, 2021 
Terry Ward June 1, 2021 
Zebadiah Morlok June 1, 2022 
George Shrum June 1, 2022 
Rusty Sullivan June 1, 2022 
Councilman Liaison - Stephanie Davidson 

32 



SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 

Duly read and passed this __ day of __ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURJ ) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Andi-ea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby ce1iify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held the __ day of _ __, 2019, by the following vote, to
wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

33 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 



·--:~\\\if I/ · . . 
. . -~ 
·, .... ·-
Belton 

.Parks & RccreiLtion. 

City of Belton Parks & Recreation 

501 c3 Park Foundation Board 

Date: :--1/5/ / '7 ~ . I 

Name: ;j;J\(\ d~er bwoff 
Address: I 5q 02 furr (5 Aue' bcifusn ffi 0 
Phone: i l &J -33ct:- \ t-"] 'l 9 
E-Mail: ~ l'\'2£ \ :;i:_@ 14: , If ' ( (jYl 

Length of residence in the North Cass area: _=f~D~lt't-'c~s __________ _ 
List ProfesslonalNolunteer Experience: ______________ _ 

c,lNJ[C/41\ c~ \ii J!f)[IS \10\LLtl~'---'<a""-'-/( ___ · _ _ __ _ 

±u:hJ-i °25 d e.fV\ a.b:±-4 Ytj- . . _ , . 

34 



\ /J/11. 

~
.,-

' -' -
Belton 

Parks & Recreation --
City of Belton Parks & Recreation 

501 c3 Park Foundation Board 

Date: ~ /-i-=-f 6-1-/ ,,__J 0/.,_____ 
I 

Name: -Z..e BA D:(AH f'-llc,R--LOK 

Address: 5 l q CA uNs D.- I k ! {-~ (\ \ Mo /,p t...j-O I ·-;;;. 

Phone: o/' 535'" ":J--;}. ~ O 

E-Mail: -z.-rnvr-lnK..e, .k~. com 

Length of residence In the North Cass area: C,,l.,(freA+ ~M-i ; l L~e_~ 3 rnr;,11-/1,s 

List ProfessionalNolunteer Experience: _______________ _ 

J} Z>-t; Tu?~\ os-fo.A-e-. ~efi+) Subs+i'~-k_\~) P1e:h\-ll AsSoCl
10v+e.. 

y,o I~(: f'-l.ll -t'(YY) ~ (V\j.SS ·1011ov;1 -tor- C4-..\ ~66.+- ,31ffe:C1'5 t'n ~!1.ej mCA..1 
_/ .••\A \ 

\ Y\OJ..AfA.AV \ C,,Llc ( .u,+l1 sfNL-h 13 ~f\ - fr oh 't Y\ ~ M V-fpiW~ ~fl Ufj• 

What Is your Interest in serving on the Park Foundation Board? 1 hcul-e... fli· v~ 1/J 6e /fo..a. 
fY\o 5.\- o-f ~ \, k ·:-::c-· \ -ov--L- ·tk :\:t>wo 4'\ J w ou..__l cJ I 1 • ~ 'to k. 

Y'Y' ti, e.. ~ft~-e 1-/'\ '-t"h<. Ct)Y11 M U-ll l . ~, 

List other qualifications and Interests that may help you in serving on this Foundation Board: 

Ml,/ t,o(:t( av) :r: hP-,ue. Jo~ a -k.,w ,ywr~~ s or--d V1{;\)le_ 

~ ¼ ei~@ ¾l\L"'--::.Sh ~ fr DCe.ss a.f- O--ff¼ui, -h>r f,:/<e_ ~ 
0:f p'9.tf~'--.S. -I; ~-l. \~ ~ h,1\les 011 -J-ra_;Js e<..l/ 

~o~ ~ KC ~ a'ld g l<~.fe a ~ 0~ those ~ 
, .-yr-Ctbh. pl c)c.ur. ;:. e<.J&> , ov.e_ (5()~ 0? r u r ~ 0 bl}-G.k(f-/:;all( 

~ t\fD\\~k>~b'\ , -S- ~1~~ htz.e) t/Y1. ~f?,---~c1~-h~ f r+t-z. 
~ \.JJ'v-to vV--o...eJ.e_ t+ fD~~I ~-



SECTION VII 
H 

36 



R2019-45 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE Y ·BELTON TWO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the Community Improvement District Act ("Act"), Section 67.1401 to 67.1571 of 
the Revised Statutes of Missouri, provides for the Chief elected officer of a municipality 
("Mayor") to appoint Successor Directors of a Community Improvement District with the 
consent of the governing body of the municipality ("City Council"); and 

WHEREAS, the Y Belton Two CID ("District"), which was formed by Ordinance 2017-4359 
adopted by the City Council of Belton, Missouri, is a public body created under the authority of 
the Act, and is transacting business and exercising the powers granted by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the terms for Russ Ehnen, Andy Mitchell, and Carolyn Yatsook are set to expire in 
May 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is hereby submitting to the Mayor and City Council their 
recommendation for the reappointment of Russ Ehnen, Andy Mitchell, and Carolyn Yatsook to a 
new four ( 4) year term. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the reappointment of Russ Ehnen, Andy Mitchell, and Carolyn Yatsook as 
members of the District's Board of Directors is approved, each to serve a four-year term. 

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 

Duly read and passed this __ day of __ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

37 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



STATE OF MISSOURJ ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held the _day of __ , 2019, by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

38 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 



RESOLUTXON NO. 2019-01 

THEY BELTON TWO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION Oli' THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE "DOARJ>") OF THE Y 
DELTON TWO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (THE "DISTRICT')) 
NOMINA1'ING SUCCESSOR DIRECTORS 

WHEREAS, the DI std ct, which was formecl by Or<llnance Number 2017-4359 adopted 
by the City Council of Belton, Missouri, is a publlc body created under the authority of the 
''Missouri Community Improvement Distl'ict Act," Section 67.1401, e.1 seq., RSMo, as mny bo 
nmended (the "Act"): 11nd is lnmsacting business and exercising powers grnnted by the Act; 

WHEREAS, the Petition to Estt1blish the- Dhitl'ict (the "Petition") authol'izes the Bonrd to 
select qunH:fied individuals to serve as lnterlm Dfrectots 111 accordu11oe with tho qu£11ificntio11s set 
fol'th in the Petltio11; and 

WHEREAS, U1.e te1·ms for Russ Ehnen, Andy Mitchell, nnd Carolyn Yatsook are set to 
expire In May, and 

WHEREAS, the Boal'd wishes to appoint R\1ss Ehn.en, Andy Mitchell, and Carolyn 
Yntsook for a new 4 year term; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directoi·s of the Y Belton 
Two Community Improvement District, as follows: 

1. 1'he Board appoints Russ Ehnen, Andy Mitchell, nnd Carolyll Yatsook to sel'VC ns 
Successor Director lo serve a fou.1• (4) ye11r te1·m. 

2, The District's Legal Counsel is U\1tbo1'ized to take all notions necessary to c111·ry ot1t 
this Resoh1tlon; 

3, This Resollltioll shall take effect immediately, 

Adopted this l ' 1 day of March, 2019, 

~827-0:)85-3060.1 

39 

I 

I 
I 
l 

1 



SECTION VII 
I 

40 



R2019-46 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH OPENCITIES, INC. FOR 
WEBSITE PUBLISHING, MANAGEMENT AND HOSTING SERVICES FOR THE CITY 
OF BELTON. 

WHEREAS, OpenCities, Inc. offers website publishing, management and hosting services for 
local government websites utilizing proprietary content management system; and 

WHEREAS, Code Section 2-927 of the City of Belton, Missouri encourages participation in 
cooperative purchasing programs; and 

WHEREAS, OpenCities, Inc. through SHI has entered into a competitively bid pricing contract 
with the BuyBoard National Purchasing Cooperative and as a local government office the City is 
an eligible participant. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BEL TON, MISSOURI, 

SECTION 1. That the City Council hereby authorizes the agreement with OpenCities, Inc., 
herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit A to this ordinance. 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage and approval. 

Duly read and passed this __ day of __ _, 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

41 



ST ATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held the __ day of _ _, 2019 by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 

42 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 



SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Software As A Service Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated ----- ----~ 
20 l_ (the "Effective Date"), and is by and between OpenCities, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
("OpenCities"), and the City of Belton, a Missouri City ("Customer"). This Agreement includes 
Schedules A and B hereto, as well as OpenCities' Acceptable Use Policy, Privacy Policy, and SLA 
( all as defined below in Article 1 ), and all such documents are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

OpenCities offers website publishing, management and hosting services for local government 
websites utilizing proprietary content management system, and Customer desires that OpenCities 
provide such services to Customer, all on the terms and conditions set forth herein. Therefore, in 
consideration for the mutual promises of the parties set forth below, the adequacy of which 
consideration the parties hereby acknowledge, the parties agree as follows. 

1. DEFINITIONS. The following capitalized terms will have the following meanings whenever 
used in this Agreement. 

1. 1. "Acceptable Use Policy" ("AUP") means, as of any date, the version of OpenCities' 
acceptable use policy posted at http://support.OpenCities.com as of such date. 

1.2. "Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday or a Sunday on which banks in the State 
of California are open for business. 

1.3. "Core Module" means the individual modules that are included within the SaaS. From time 
to time, new Core Modules will be introduced to the SaaS via Version Updates which are 
included in the Fees paid by Customer. 

1 .4. "Customer Data" means any and all data and information, including text, graphics, 
photographs, audio-visual elements, music, illustrations, video or other content, domain 
names, email, chat room content, bulletin board postings, or any other items or materials of 
Customer, any user or any other third party provided or permitted by Customer to be made 
available by or to reside within the SaaS or Customer's Website. 

1.5. "Customer's Website" means the website(s) created by or on behalf of Customer through use 
of the Saas for Customer's internal business purposes. 

1.6. "Customizations" has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.2(f). 

1. 7. "Documentation" means Open Cities' standard user documentation and any other operating, 
training and reference manuals related to the SaaS, all of which are contained in the 
OpenCities Knowledge Bank. 

1.8. "Integrations" means optional enhancements to the SaaS involving third party products or 
services, which are offered separately by OpenCities and are available for purchase by 
Customer via the OpenCities Knowledge Bank. 

43 



1.9. "Intellectual Property Rights" means all intellectual or industrial property, including without 
limitation any copyright, trade or service mark, patent, moral right, trade secret, logo, know 
how, rights in relation to inventions, drawings, discoveries, improvements, technical data, 
formulae, computer programs, know-how, logos, designs, circuit layouts, domain names, 
business names, software, whether or not now existing, and whether or not registered or 
unregistered rights, and rights in respect of Confidential Information. 

1.10. "Malicious Code" means code, files scripts, agents or programs intended to do harm, 
including, for example, viruses, worms, time bombs and Trojan horses. 

1.11. "Open Cities Knowledge Bank" means the Documentation and the specifications for the SaaS 
(the "Specifications") currently posted at http://support.OpenCities.com. 

1.12. "Premium Modules" means optional enhancements to the Saas offered by OpenCities that 
can be purchased separately by Customer via the OpenCities Knowledge Bank; 

1.13. "Privacy Policy" means, as of any date, OpenCities' privacy policy posted at 
http://support.OpenCities.com as of such date. 

1.14. "SaaS" means the data traffic management, website publishing and web hosting services 
utilizing Open Cities' proprietary content management system, including any Version 
Updates and Core Modules released by OpenCities, and all related Specifications and 
Documentation. 

1.15. "Scheduled Maintenance Window" means the date and time slot identified by Open Cities in 
a written notice given to Customer via the OpenCities Knowledge Bank no later than 5 
Business Days prior to the proposed Scheduled Maintenance Window to enable maintenance 
work and Version Updates to be performed. The Scheduled Maintenance Window will be 
outside of Customer's normal business hours and periods of peak demand, whenever 
reasonably possible. 

1.16. "SLA" or "Service Level Agreement" means Open Cities' standard service level agreement 
as in effect from time to time, the current version of which is set forth in Schedule A hereto. 

1.17. "Term" is defined in Section 12.1 below. 

1.18. "Version Updates" means updated versions of the SaaS (indicated by a higher numerical 
version number) developed by OpenCities with enhancements or additions to the 
functionality, and/or performance improvements and bug fixes. 

2. SCOPE AND USAGE OF SAAS. 

2.1. Use of SaaS. During the Term and upon payment of the applicable Fees set out in Schedule 
A hereto, OpenCities shall make the SaaS available to Customer in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement solely for Customer's internal business purposes. Customer may permit an 
unlimited number of its employees and its contractors to use the SaaS provided their use is solely 
for Customer's internal business purposes and at all times in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

2 

44 



2.2. Scope of SaaS. Upon payment of the applicable Fees and subject to the other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Open Cities will provide the following services to Customer during 
the Term: 

(a) Website Publishing System. OpenCities will provide Customer with the website 
publishing functionality set out in the SaaS Documentation and the Specifications. 

(b) Web Hosting. OpenCities will provide Customer with the data traffic management and 
web hosting services set out in Schedule A. 

( c) Maintenance and Support. Open Cities will provide the maintenance and support 
services set out in Section 3 hereof. 

( d) Service Level Agreement. OpenCities will use commercially reasonable efforts to 
ensure the SaaS is available in accordance with the then applicable Service Level 
Agreement. 

( e) Premium Modules and Integrations. Open Cities may offer access to Premium Modules 
and Integrations for use in conjunction with the SaaS to increase functionality . If offered, 
these Premium Modules and Integrations will be available for separate purchase by 
Customer. 

(i) Any Premium Modules offered by OpenCities will eligible to receive the 
support and maintenance services set out in Section 3 below, except that they 
will be subject only to Severity Levels 2 - 4 of the Service Level Agreement. 

(ii) Integrations will be eligible to receive support and maintenance services 
pursuant to Article 3 below, except that they will be subject only to Severity 
Levels 2-4 of the Service Level Agreement; and provided further that because 
Integrations involve third party providers and third party products and services, 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that: (A) OpenCities shall have no 
obligation to correct errors or provide a workaround, patch or update to the 
extent the error or downtime is caused by such third-party providers, products 
or services; (B) any errors or downtime to the SaaS that arise out of or in 
connection with such Integrations will not be subject to the uptime guarantee 
contained in the Service Level Agreement; and (C) in the event any errors or 
downtime relating to an Integration involves a third party provider or a third 
party product or service, support by OpenCities will be limited to notification 
and escalation to the relevant third party support supplier. 

(iii) If OpenCities, in its sole discretion, determines that an error or defect with a 
Premium Module or Integration is unable to be, or cannot be reasonably, 
rectified, Open Cities may disable Customer access and cancel Customer's 
subscription to the Premium Module or Integration. Where such action is taken 
by OpenCities, Customer's sole and exclusive remedy will be to receive a pro
rated portion of the Fees paid by Customer for the applicable Premium Module 

3 

45 



or Integration for such period of time that Customer was unable to use that 
Premium Module or Integration. 

(f) Customizations. OpenCities may provide Customer with developer training in setting 
up additional templates, functions or web services and other additional functionality to 
customise the SaaS ("Customizations"), or Customer may request that OpenCities 
develop Customizations on Customer's behalf. Any Customization services to be 
supplied by OpenCities will be provided pursuant to a separate statement of work 
executed by the parties. All such Customization services will be charged on a time and 
materials basis at OpenCities then-current rates for the applicable Customization 
services. Where Customizations have been produced by the Customer or a 3rd party, 
OpenCities is not responsible for any incompatibility between the Customizations and 
the SaaS, including those resulting from Version Updates to the Saas. Where the 
Customizations have been produced by OpenCities, OpenCities agrees that such 
Customizations will be compatible with the then-current version of the SaaS in 
accordance with the terms set forth in the applicable statement of work. Customer 
acknowledges that the support and maintenance services set out in Article 3 will not be 
provided for any Customizations and that Customizations are not covered by the Service 
Level Agreement. If Customer desires to obtain support for any Customizations, any 
support offered by OpenCities will be charged on a time and materials basis at 
OpenCities' then-current rates for such support. Any Customizations developed by 
OpenCities shall be the property of OpenCities. Effective upon delivery of any such 
Customizations to Customer, OpenCities grants Customer a perpetual, nonexclusive, 
non-transferable, fully paid license to copy, modify, create derivative works of and use 
such Customizations as part of Customer's Website. 

(g) Additional Services. OpenCities may provide certain additional services from time to 
time under this Agreement as agreed by the parties in writing. 

(h) Use of Third Party Service Providers. Customer acknowledges that OpenCities has, and 
in the future may, retain one or more third party service providers to supply certain 
aspects of the SaaS, including certain of the facilities, equipment, products, services and 
connectivity necessary to offer the Saas. Customer acknowledges that OpenCities 
currently obtains web hosting services from the provider identified in, and on the terms 
and conditions referenced in, Schedule A. 

2.3. Documentation: Customer may reproduce and use the Documentation solely as necessary 
to support its use of the Saas. 

2.4. Users of Customer's Website. Customer may authorize an unlimited number of users to 
access and use Customer's Website. Customer agrees that it is not authorized to, and agrees not 
to, make any representations or warranties regarding the SaaS or OpenCities to any user or third 
party, and further agrees not to otherwise create or purport to create any obligations or liabilities 
on the part of OpenCities. Customer agrees to indemnify OpenCities for its and any user's acts and 
omissions related to Customer's Website and/or the SaaS. OpenCities has no obligation to provide 
support or any other services, or any SLA remedies or other remedies, to such users. 

4 

46 



3. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES. 

3.1. Maintenance and Support; SLA. Subject to the other provisions of this Article 3 and 
Customer' s payment of all applicable Fees, during the Term: 

(a) OpenCities will provide the remedies listed in the SLA for any failure of the SaaS or the 
SaaS Documentation listed in the SLA. Such remedies are Customer's sole remedy for 
any failure of the Saas, and Customer recognizes and agrees that if the SLA does not list 
a remedy for a given failure, it has no remedy. Any credits issued pursuant to the SLA 
for failure to meet the uptime guarantee specified in the SLA will apply to outstanding 
or future invoices only and are forfeited upon termination of this Agreement. Open Cities 
is not required to issue refunds or to make payments against such credits under any 
circumstances, including without limitation after termination of this Agreement. 

(b) OpenCities may revise the SLA or the features and functions of the SaaS at any time, 
provided no such revision materially reduces the features or functionality provided to 
Customer as set forth herein. 

(c) OpenCities will provide Customer with Version Updates. Customer acknowledges that 
Version Updates are mandatory and necessary for the proper function and security of the 
SaaS. Customer agrees to the implementation of all Version Updates by OpenCities. 
Implementation will occur during a Scheduled Maintenance Window. Any Saas 
downtime or functionality issues arising during a Scheduled Maintenance Window will 
not be subject to the Service Level Agreement. 

( d) OpenCities grants Customer personnel unlimited access to the Open Cities Knowledge 
Bank to review the Documentation and Specifications. Customer acknowledges and 
agrees that it does not have an unlimited right to request maintenance and support 
services through the Open Cities Knowledge Bank; requests for maintenance and support 
must be made in compliance with paragraph ( e) hereof. 

( e) Open Cities will make available to Customer an online and telephone help desk service, 
which will allow 2 designated support: representatives of Customer who have received 
training in the SaaS to request maintenance and support services in accordance with the 
Service Level Agreement. Requests from other personnel will not be accepted. The 
contact details for the online and telephone help desk support services are set out in 
Schedule A. 

(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs (d) and (e) above, where Customer's 
Website is experiencing a Severity 1 problem, any Customer personnel may contact 
OpenCities via the telephone help desk to report the Severity 1 problem. 

3 .2. Scheduled and Emergency Maintenance. 

(a) OpenCities agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to conduct all Saas 
maintenance within a Scheduled Maintenance Window. However, Customer 
acknowledges that an unplanned event may occur that will require the need for 

5 

47 



OpenCities to perform maintenance on the SaaS on an emergency basis outside of a 
Scheduled Maintenance Window. 

(b) OpenCities will use reasonable efforts to give Customer advance notice of emergency 
maintenance, but it is possible that advanced notification of emergency maintenance will 
not occur. Any SaaS downtime or functionality issues during the Scheduled Maintenance 
Window or during emergency maintenance will not be subject to the Service Level 
Agreement. 

3 .3 Conditions. OpenCities provision of the maintenance and support services set forth in this 
Article 3 is subject to the following conditions: 

(a) Customer must document and promptly report all errors or malfunctions of the SaaS to 
OpenCities or its assigned agents and representatives; 

(b) Customer must carry out procedures to rectify errors or malfunctions within a reasonable 
period after receiving instructions from OpenCities on such procedures; and 

(c) Customer must provide OpenCities with reasonable access to Customer's personnel, its 
assigned agents and representatives as required by OpenCities to meet its obligations 
under this Agreement. 

3.4 Exclusions. OpenCities is under no obligation to provide the maintenance and support 
services specified in this Article 3 if they are requested as a result of or related to: (a) operation of 
the SaaS with other media and hardware, SaaS or interfaces not authorized or maintained in 
accordance with this Agreement or the Documentation; (b) use of the Saas that is not in accordance 
with the Documentation; ( c) any modification, alteration or addition or attempted modification, 
alteration or addition to the SaaS (unless such modifications were developed by OpenCities or 
authorised by OpenCities in writing); ( d) failure of any data service, internet service or any other 
third-party service, or failure of a telecommunications connection, hardware, software, web 
services, or third party content, software, or equipment; or ( e) any non-reproducible error or defect 
reported by Customer. 

3.5 Abuse of Maintenance Services. In the event Customer abuses the maintenance and support 
services offered by OpenCities ( e.g. by declaring a problem Severity Level 1 when it is only 
Severity Level 2, 3 or 4, unless such distinction could not reasonably have been determined, or by 
reporting problems which are not Severity 1 during non-business hours) an "Abuse Incident" will 
be noted, and OpenCities will inform Customer of such. 

4. FEES AND PAYMENT TERMS. 

4.1 Subscription Fees. Customer will pay OpenCities the annual subscription and other fees 
set forth in Schedule A (the "Fees") during the Initial Term and the applicable Fees for each 
Renewal Term, which Fees are based on the resident population of Customer Except as otherwise 
expressly provided in this Agreement, all Fees are non-cancelable and non-refundable. The Fees 
for the first year of the Initial Term are payable within 30 days of execution of this Agreement, 
and the Fees for each successive year during the Initial Term and each Renewal Term shall be 

6 

48 



payable net 30 days from the date of OpenCities' invoice. 

4.2 Fee Adjustments. Upon expiration of the Initial Term, Fees may be adjusted for each 
Renewal Term to take into account any increases in the Consumer Price Index for all Items as 
published by the US Bureau of Labor Statistics and any adjustments in the resident population qf 
Customer's region. No later than ninety (90) days prior to the commencement of any Renewal 
Term, Customer agrees to provide OpenCities, upon OpenCities ' request, with the then current 
resident population within Customer' s region, and Open Cities shall revise the Fees for the ensuing 
Renewal Term if the population of the region has increased or decreased such that it falls within a 
different population band. Customer's initial population band is set out in Schedule A. OpenCities 
shall notify Customer of any Fees adjustments made pursuant to this Section 4.2 at least seventy 
(70) days prior to the commencement of the applicable Renewal Term. 

4.3 Excess Usage. If Customer uses any bandwidth or storage space in excess of the ' allocated 
bandwidth and storage space' set forth in Schedule A, OpenCities may, in its sole discretion, 
require that Customer pay additional traffic and server storage charges calculated in accordance 
with Schedule A. Customer's and its users' use of the SaaS and access to it is Customer's 
responsibility. Customer is responsible for any unauthorised access to the Saas resulting in 
bandwidth and/or storage usage exceeding the allocated limits and any charges resulting as a 
consequence. 

4.4 Overdue Charges. If any invoiced amount is not received by OpenCities by the due date, 
then without limiting OpenCities' rights or remedies, (a) those charges may accrue late interest at 
the rate of 1.5% of the outstanding balance per month, or the maximum rate permitted by law, 
whichever is lower, and/or (b) OpenCities may condition future subscription renewals on payment 
terms shorter than those specified herein. Customer will be liable for all costs of collection of any 
undisputed, overdue amounts including, without limitation, all court costs, legal fees and other 
costs incurred by OpenCities. 

4.5 Taxes. The Fees charged by OpenCities do not include any taxes, levies, duties or similar 
governmental assessments of any nature, including, value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, 
assessable by any jurisdiction whatsoever (collectively, "Taxes"). Customer is responsible for 
paying all Taxes associated Customer's purchase of the Saas. If OpenCities has the legal 
obligation to pay or collect any Taxes for which Customer is responsible under this Section 4(e), 
then Customer agrees that OpenCities will invoice Customer that amount unless Customer 
provides OpenCities with a valid tax exemption certificate authorized by the appropriate taxing 
authority. For clarity, Open Cities is responsible for taxes assessable against it based on its income, 
property and employees. 

4.6 Future Functionality. Customer agrees that its purchase is not contingent on the delivery 
of any future functionality or features, or dependent on any oral or written public comments made 
by OpenCities regarding future functionality or features. 

7 

49 



5. CUSTOMER DATA & SECURITY. 

5.1. Customer Rights to Data. Customer retains all right, title and interest (including any 
Intellectual Property Rights) in and to all data and content supplied by or on behalf of Customer 
in connection with the SaaS and Customer's Website, including data uploaded by users thereof 
(collectively, the "Customer Data"). Customer hereby grants OpenCities a limited, non-exclusive, 
royalty-free, non-transferable license to host, reproduce, transmit, cache, store, exhibit, publish, 
display, distribute, perform, and otherwise use the Customer Data solely as necessary to provide 
the SaaS for Customer. 

5.2. Responsibility for Customer Data. Customer is solely responsible for Customer Data, 
including the accuracy, quality, appropriateness and legality of all Customer Data and the means 
by which the Customer Data is acquired, and OpenCities shall have no responsibility or liability 
therefor. Customer represents and warrants to OpenCities that: 

(a) Customer owns or has the right to use Customer Data, and has the rights necessary to 
grant Open Cities the licence set forth in Section 5. I. 

(b) All Customer Data will be "server ready" and otherwise remain fully compatible with 
OpenCities' SaaS (including all software and operating systems); and 

(,c) Customer has obtained all necessary rights, releases and consents to allow the Customer 
Data to be collected, used and disclosed in the manner contemplated by this Agreement 
and to grant OpenCities the rights herein. 

5.3. OpenCities ' Use of Customer Data. Unless it receives Customer's prior written consent, 
OpenCities: (a) will not access, process, or otherwise use Customer Data other than as necessary 
to facilitate the SaaS; and (b) will not intentionally grant any third party access to Customer Data, 
except subcontractors that are subject to a reasonable nondisclosure agreement. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, OpenCities may disclose Customer Data, including, without limitation, user profile 
information (i.e. name, e-mail address, etc.), IP addressing and traffic information, and usage 
history, as required by applicable law or by proper legal or governmental authority. OpenCities 
will give Customer prompt notice of any such legal or governmental demand and reasonably 
cooperate with Customer in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to contest such 
required disclosure, at Customer' s expense. 

5.4. Protection of Customer Data. OpenCities will use commercially reasonable, industry 
standard administrative, physical and technical safeguards for the protection of the security, 
confidentiality and integrity of the Customer Data, including implementation of measures designed 
to prevent unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure and loss of the Customer Data. 
OpenCities will archive Customer Data on a regular basis during the Term by performing 6 daily 
and 8 weekly backups for the purposes of disaster recovery. In the event of equipment failure or 
data corruption, OpenCities will restore from the most recent uncorrupted archive. In the event of 
corruption of all of Open Cities archives, or in the event that an old archive is used to restore data, 
Customer will have the responsibility of uploading new Customer Data to Customer's Website. 

8 

50 



OpenCities will not be liable for incomplete, out-of-date, corrupt or otherwise deficient Customer 
Data recovered from OpenCities backups. 

5.5. No Obligation to Monitor; Right to Remove. OpenCities may, but has no obligation to, 
monitor, review or edit Customer Data. In all cases, OpenCities reserves the right to remove, delete 
or disable access to any Customer Data that OpenCities determines, in the exercise of its sole 
discretion, violates this Agreement (including the Acceptable Use Policy) or is illegal, damaging, 
problematic, objectionable or otherwise inappropriate. OpenCities may take such action without 
prior notification of Customer. 

5.6. Privacy Policy. The Privacy Policy applies only to the SaaS and does not apply to any third 
party website or service linked to the Saas or recommended or referred to through the SaaS or by 
OpenCities staff. 

5. 7. Risk of Exposure. Customer recognizes and agrees that hosting data online involves risks 
of unauthorized disclosure or exposure and that, in accessing and using the Saas, Customer 
assumes such risks. OpenCities offers no representation, warranty, or guarantee that Customer 
Data will not be exposed or disclosed through errors or the actions of third parties. 

5.8. Data Deletion. OpenCities may permanently erase Customer Data if Customer's account 
is delinquent, suspended, or terminated for 30 days or more. 

5.9. Aggregate & Anonymized Data. Notwithstanding the provisions above of this Article 5, 
OpenCities may use, reproduce, sell, publicize, or otherwise exploit Aggregate Data in any way, 
in its sole discretion. ("Aggregate Data" refers to Customer Data with the following removed: 
personally identifiable information and the names and addresses of Customer and any of its users.) 

6. CUSTOMER'S OBLIGATIONS & RESTRICTIONS. 

6.1 Acceptable Use. Customer will comply with OpenCities' AUP as in effect from time to 
time. Customer will not: (a) sell, resell, license, sublicense, distribute, make available, rent or 
lease the Saas or use the Saas for service bureau or time-sharing purposes or in any other way 
allow third parties to exploit or access the Saas, except users accessing Customer's Website as 
specifically authorized by this Agreement; (b) use the SaaS to store or transmit infringing, libelous, 
or otherwise unlawful or tortious material, or to store or transmit material in violation of third
party privacy rights; (c) use the SaaS to store or transmit Malicious Code; (d) share non-public 
Saas features or content with any third paity; ( e) frame or mirror any part of the Saas other than 
framing on Customer's own intranets or otherwise for Customer's internal business purposes; (f) 
reverse engineer any portion of the SaaS, or (g) access the Saas in order to build a competitive 
product or service, to build a product using similar ideas, features, functions or graphics of the 
SaaS, or to copy any ideas, paits, features, functions or graphics of the SaaS. In the event that it 
suspects any breach of the requirements of this Section 6.1, including without limitation by 
Customer's users, OpenCities may suspend Customer's access to the SaaS without advance notice, 
in addition to such other remedies as OpenCities may have. Neither this Agreement nor the AUP 
requires that OpenCities take any action against Customer or any user or other third party for 
violating the AUP, this Section 6.1, or this Agreement, but Open Cities is free to take any such 

9 

51 



action it sees fit. Any breach of the AUP or any of the provisions of this Article 6 will entitle 
OpenCities to elect to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to Customer. 

6.2 Unauthorized Access; Security. Customer will take reasonable steps to prevent 
unauthorized access to the SaaS and the network, including without limitation by protecting its 
passwords and other log-in information. Customer will notify OpenCities immediately of any 
known or suspected unauthorized access to or use of the SaaS or breach of its security and will use 
best efforts to stop said breach. Customer shall not: 

(a) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance of the SaaS or attempt to gain 
unauthorized access to the Saas, or OpenCities' or its suppliers' related systems and 
networks; 

(b) commit, cause or allow any breach ( or do anything which might put us in breach) of any 
applicable law, regulation, government direction or industry standard or code; 

( c) attempt to or actually access the SaaS by any means other than through the portals or 
interfaces provided by OpenCities; 

( d) attempt to or actually override any security component included in or underlying the 
SaaS; or 

( e) attempt or engage in any action that directly or indirectly interferes with the proper 
working of or place an umeasonable load on OpenCities' infrastructure. 

6.3 Compliance with Laws. In its use of the Saas, Customer will comply with all applicable 
laws, including without limitation laws governing the protection of personally identifiable 
information and other laws applicable to the protection of Customer Data. Contractor will be 
required to sign an Unauthorized Alien Affidavit. 

6.4 Responsibility for Users; SaaS Access. Customer is responsible and liable for: (a) its own 
and its users use of the SaaS, including without limitation for any unauthorized user conduct and 
any user conduct that would violate the AUP or the requirements of this Agreement applicable to 
Customer; and (b) any use of the Saas through Customer's account, whether authorized or 
unauthorized. Customer agrees to indemnify Open Cities against any loss or damage ( except where 
and to the extent that such loss or damage is consequential in nature) that Open Cities suffers as a 
result of any unauthorized access to OpenCities' SaaS or network or those of OpenCities' 
suppliers. 

6.5 Required Third Party Services. 

(a) Customer will establish and maintain, at its own expense, all telecommunications 
equipment and access lines necessary to gain access to the SaaS. 

(b) In order for Open Cities to provide some of the services under this Agreement, 
Customer may at times, be required to give OpenCities access to or provide login 
information and password information for accounts or services Customer may have 

10 

52 



with third party providers. When Customer provides OpenCities with this information 
or provides OpenCities with access to these third party accounts, Customer warrants 
that it has all the necessary contractual and legal rights to give OpenCities such access, 
login information and passwords. 

(c) Customer acknowledges that OpenCities will not have any responsibility or liability 
with regard to any third party services used by the Customer on or through the 
OpenCities formed web content, such as payment and e-commerce services, . and any 
use of such third party services will be at Customer's own risk. Customer further 
acknowledges that the technical ability to link to such services ( such as the possibility 
of a 'Pay Pal' button), is provided only as part of the SaaS but will not be deemed to 
create any liability or responsibility on behalf of OpenCities. 

( d) Where any third party SaaS integration is found to cause performance, stability or 
security issues, Open Cities reserves the right to disable or remove that third party SaaS 
in order to restore our SaaS to acceptable levels. 

6.6 Customer Representative. Customer will appoint a designated representative who will be 
authorized to act as the primary point of contact for Customer in dealing with OpenCities with 
respect to each party's obligations under this Agreement and on a timely basis. 

7 OPENCITIES IP & FEEDBACK. 

7 .1 IP Rights in the SaaS. OpenCities retains all right, title, and interest in and to the SaaS, 
including without limitation all software used to provide the Saas and all graphics, user interfaces, 
logos, and trademarks reproduced through the SaaS. This Agreement does not grant Customer any 
intellectual property license or rights in or to the SaaS or any of its components or any 
Documentation. Customer recognizes that the Saas and its components and the Documentation 
are protected by copyright and other laws. 

7.2 Feedback. OpenCities has not agreed to and does not agree to treat as confidential any 
Feedback (as defined below) that Customer or other users provide to OpenCities, and nothing in 
this Agreement or in the paiiies' dealings arising out of or related to this Agreement will restrict 
OpenCities's right to use, profit from, disclose, publish, keep secret, or otherwise exploit 
Feedback, without compensating or crediting Customer or the user in question. Customer hereby 
grants OpenCities a perpetual, irrevocable right and license to exploit Feedback in any and every 
way. ("Feedback" refers to any suggestion or idea for improving or otherwise modifying any of 
OpenCities's products or services.) 

8 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

8.1 "Confidential Information" refers to the following items: (a) any document either party 
marks "Confidential"; (b) any information either party orally designates as "Confidential" at the 
time of disclosure, provided the disclosing party confirms such designation in writing within ten 
(10) Business Days; ( c )any Open Cities software and all Documentation and other information in 
the OpenCities Knowledge Bank, whether or not marked or designated confidential; and ( d) any 
other nonpublic, sensitive information the receiving party should reasonably consider a trade secret 

11 

53 



or otherwise confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information does not 
include information that: (i) is in the receiving party's possession at the time of disclosure; (ii) is 
independently developed by the receiving party without use of or reference to Confidential 
Information; (iii) becomes known publicly, before or after disclosure, other than as a result of the 
receiving party's improper action or inaction; or (iv) is approved for release in writing by the 
disclosing party. 

8.2 Nondisclosure. Neither OpenCities nor Customer will use Confidential Information for any 
purpose other than in performance of this Agreement (the "Purpose"). Each of OpenCities and 
Customer agrees that it: ( a) will not disclose Confidential Information to any of its employees or 
contractors unless such persons need access in order to facilitate the Purpose and, in the case of a 
contractor, such contractor executes a nondisclosure agreement with the appropriate party with 
terms no less restrictive than those of this Article 8; and (b) will not disclose Confidential 
Information to any other third party without the disclosing party's prior written consent. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, each party will protect Confidential Information with the 
same degree of care it uses to protect its own confidential information of similar nature and 
importance, but with no less than reasonable care. Each party agrees that it will promptly notify 
the other party of any misuse or misappropriation of the other party's Confidential Information 
that comes to its attention. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party may disclose Confidential 
Information as required by applicable law or by proper legal or governmental authority, provided 
such party gives the other party prompt notice of any such legal or governmental demand and 
reasonably cooperates with the other party in any effort to seek a protective order or otherwise to 
contest such required disclosure, at the other party's expense. 

8.3 Injunction. The parties agree that breach of this Article 8 would cause the disclosing party 
irreparable injury, for which monetary damages would not provide adequate compensation, and 
that in addition to any other remedy, and that the disclosing party will be entitled to injunctive 
relief against such breach or threatened breach, without proving actual damage or posting a bond 
or other security. 

8.4 Termination & Return. With respect to each item of Confidential Information, the 
obligations of Section 8.1 above will terminate five (5) years after the date of disclosure; provided 
that such obligations related to Confidential Information of a party constituting trade secrets will 
continue so long as such information remains subject to trade secret protection pursuant to 
applicable law. Upon termination of this Agreement, each party will return all copies of the other 
party's Confidential Information to the other party or certify, in writing, the destruction thereof. 

8.5 Retention of Rights. This Agreement does not transfer ownership of Confidential 
Information or grant a license thereto. Each party will retain all right, title, and interest in and to 
all of its Confidential Information. 

8.6 Exception & Immunity. Pursuant to the Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016, 18 USC Section 
l 833(b) (the "DTSA"), each party is on notice and acknowledges that, notwithstanding the 
foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement: 

(a) An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any Federal or State 
trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that- (A) is made- (i) in confidence 
to a Federal, State, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an 

12 

54 



attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected 
violation of law; or (B) is made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or 
other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. 

(b) An individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a 
suspected violation oflaw may disclose the trade secret to the attorney of the individual 
and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual- (A) files 
any document containing the trade secret under seal; and (B) does not disclose the trade 
secret, except pursuant to court order. 

9 REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES. 

9.1 Mutual Representations and Warranties. Each party represents and warrants to the other 
party that it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, the execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement by such party has been duly authorized, and this 
Agreement, when executed and delivered, will constitute the binding obligation of such party, 
enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms and will not conflict with any other 
agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it is bound. 

9 .2 Customer Representations and Warranties. Customer represents and warrants to 
OpenCities that: 

(a) the Customer Data and its use will not violate, misappropriate or infringe any 
Intellectual Property Rights or any other personal, privacy or moral right arising 
under the laws of any jurisdiction, nor will same constitute a libel or defamation of 
any person or entity; 

(b) the Customer Data will not contain any harmful components, including, but not 
limited to, viruses, trap doors, hidden sequences, hot keys, or time bombs; and 

( c) Customer will comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations (including, 
but not limited to, export control, decency, privacy and intellectual property laws). 

9.3 Exclusions. OpenCities has no responsibility for any products or services not provided by 
OpenCities, its agents and subcontractors. 

9.3 Warranty Disclaimers. Except to the extent set forth in the SLA and in Section 9.1 above, 
THE SAAS IS BEING PROVIDED "AS IS" AND AS AVAILABLE, WITHOUT 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ANY WARRANTY 
OF NONINFRIGEMENT, AND ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY ARISING FROM STATUTE, 
COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, OR USAGE OF TRADE, AND 
OPEN CITIES DISCLAIMS SUCH WARRANTIES TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE 
FOREGOING: (a) OPENCITIES DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE 

13 

55 



SYSTEM WILL PERFORM WITHOUT INTERRUPTION OR ERROR OR IN A TIMELY 
FASHION; AND (b) OPENCITIES DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE 
SYSTEM IS SECURE FROM HACKING OR OTHER UNAUTHORIZED INTRUSION OR 
THAT CUSTOMER DATA WILL REMAIN PRIVATE OR SECURE. OPENCITIES 
DISCLAIMS ALL LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS FOR ANY 
HARM OR DAMAGES CAUSED BY ANY THIRD-PARTY HOSTING PROVIDERS. 

10 INDEMNIFICATION. 

10.1 Indemnification of Customer. Subject to the other prov1S1ons of this Section 10.1, 
OpenCities will defend Customer and Customer's Associates (as defined below in Section 10.2) 
against any third party claim, suit, or proceeding alleging that the SaaS or the permitted use thereof 
infringes any U.S. trademark, patent, copyright, or trade secret right of a third party (an 
(collectively, "Customer Indemnified Claims") and will indemnify Customer and Customer's 
Associates from any damages, attorney's fees and costs finally awarded against Customer and 
Customer's Associates as a result of, of for amounts paid by Customer and Customer's Associates 
in a settlement approved by OpenCities in writing of, a Customer Indemnified Claim. 

(a) If in OpenCities reasonable judgment any Customer Indemnified Claim, or threat of 
any such Claim, materially interferes with Customer's use of the Saas, OpenCities will, 
after consultation with Customer, at OpenCities' option and in its sole discretion, either 
(i) substitute functionally equivalent non-infringing SaaS or SaaS Documentation; (ii) 
modify the SaaS to make it non-infringing, (iii) obtain for the Council at OpenCities 
expense the right to continue using the infringing SaaS; or, (iv) if iOpenCities' 
determines that it cannot achieve any of the foregoing on a reasonable commercial 
basis, it may, by written notice, require Customer to cease using the SaaS, in which 
case OpenCities shall refund Customer a pro-rata portion of the Fees (as set out in 
Schedule A) for the Saas for such period of time for which Customer was unable to 
use the Saas. 

(b) OpenCities' obligations set forth in this Section 10.1 do not apply to the extent that an 
Indemnified Claim arises out of: (a) Customer's breach of this Agreement; (b) revisions 
or modifications to the SaaS or any components thereof made by a party other than 
OpenCities if such infringement would not have occurred but for such revisions or 
modifciations; ( c) Customer's failure to incorporate or use any Version Updates, or any 
other updates or upgrades that would have avoided the alleged infringement, provided 
Open Cities offered such other updates or upgrades were provided to Customer without 
charge; ( d) inclusion of the Customer Data; ( e) the use of the SaaS other than for its 
intended purposes or contrary to OpenCities' Specifications; or (f) combination, 
operation or use of the SaaS with equipment, programs, hardware or software not 
provided by OpenCities if in OpenCities reasonable judgment such infringement is 
caused thereby. 

(c) The provisions of this Section 10.1 state OpenCities entire liability and Customer's sole 
and exclusive remedy in the event of any Customer Indemnified Infringement Claims. 

14 

56 



10.2 Litigation & Additional Terms. The obligations of the indemnifying party ("Indemnitor") 
pursuant to Section 10.1 above will be excused to the extent that the indemnified parties (the 
"Indemnified Parties") or any Indemnified Party's Associates fails to provide prompt written 
notice to the Indemnitor of the applicable Indemnified Claim or to reasonably cooperate with the 
Indemnitor if such failure or lack or cooperation materially prejudices the defense. Indemnitor will 
control the defense of any Indemnified Claim, including appeals, negotiations, and any settlement 
or compromise thereof; provided that the Indemnified Party will have the right, not to be exercised 
unreasonably, to reject any settlement or compromise that requires that it admit wrongdoing or 
liability or subjects it to any ongoing affirmative obligations. (A party's "Associates" are its 
officers, directors, shareholders, parents, subsidiaries, agents, successors, and assigns.) 

11 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

11.1 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. THE TOT AL LIABILITY OF OPEN CITIES' AND ITS 
AFFILIATES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT 
EXCEED THE ACTUAL FEES RECEIVED BY OPENCITIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
FOR THE PORTION OF THE SAAS OR SERVICES GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM 
DURING THE PRECEDING TWELVE-MONTH PERIOD. 

11.2 Exclusion of Consequential Damages. IN NO EVENT WILL OPENCITIES OR ITS 
AFFILIATES BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, INCLUDING ANY DAMAGES FOR 
LOSS OF REVENUES OR GOODWILL, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OR 
INACCURACY OF DATA, COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, 
SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY, OR LOST PROFITS, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. 

11.3 Clarifications & Disclaimers. THE LIABILITIES LIMITED BY THIS ARTICLE 11 
APPLY (a) REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, 
STRICT PRODUCT LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, (b) EVEN IF OPENCITIES IS ADVISED 
IN ADVANCE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF THE DAMAGES IN QUESTION AND EVEN IF 
SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE; AND (c) EVEN IF CUSTOMER'S REMEDIES 
FAIL OF THEIR ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE 
LIABILITIES LIMITED BY THIS ARTICLE 11 SHALL NOT INCLUDE LIABILITY (i) 
UNDER THE INDEMNITY PROVIDED IN SECTION 10.1, (ii) FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL 
INJURY RESULTING FROM NEGLIGENCE, (iii) FOR DAMAGE TO TANGIBLE 
PERSONAL PROPERTY, OR (iv) FOR FRAUD OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT. If applicable 
law limits the application of the provisions of this Article 11, Open Cities' liability will be limited 
to the maximum extent permissible. For the avoidance of doubt, OpenCities' liability limits and 
other rights set forth in this Article 11 apply likewise to OpenCities' affiliates, licensors, suppliers, 
advertisers, agents, sponsors, directors, officers, employees, consultants, and other representatives. 

12 TERM & TERMINATION. 

12.l Term. The initial term of this Agreement (the "Initial Term") will commence on the 
Effective Date and continue for the period set forth in Schedule A. Thereafter, the Agreement will 
automatically renew for successive one-year periods ( each such period, a "Renewal Te1m"), unless 
either party notifies the other party in writing of its decision not to renew the Agreement at least 

15 

57 



60 or more days before the applicable renewal date. The Initial Term and all Renewal Terms are 
herein referred to as the "Term". 

12.2 Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement for the other's material 
breach by written notice, effective in 30 days unless the other party first cures such breach, or 
immediately upon written notice if the other party becomes subject to any insolvency, bankruptcy 
or similar proceeding, whether voluntary or involuntary. Without limiting OpenCities' other rights 
and remedies, Open Cities may suspend or terminate any user's access to the SaaS at any time, 
without advanced notice, if OpenCities reasonably concludes such user has conducted itself in a 
way that is not consistent with the requirements of the AUP or the other requirements of this 
Agreement or in a way that subjects OpenCities to potential liability. 

12.3 Effects of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, Customer will cease all use 
of the SaaS and delete, destroy, or return all copies of the Documentation in its possession or 
control, and Customer will have the right to access the SaaS for 30 days following termination of 
this Agreement to download Customer Data. If requested by Customer in writing, at the 
Customer's expense on a time-and-materials basis, OpenCities will provide Customer an export of 

· the Customer Data in an industry standard format. Upon the expiration of this thirty-day period 
following termination of this Agreement, all Customer Data in the SaaS will no longer be available 
on OpenCities SaaS, as OpenCities will delete all such Customer Data (including all data supplied 
by third parties) from its SaaS, and will destroy all such Data, unless otherwise agreed by the 
parties in writing. 

12.4 The following provisions will survive termination or expiration of this Agreement: (a) any 
obligation of Customer to pay Fees incurred before termination; (b) Sections 2.4 and 6.4, and 
Articles 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12; and (c) any other provision of this Agreement that must survive to 
fulfill its essential purpose. 

13 MISCELLANEOUS. 

13 .1 Independent Contractors. The parties are independent contractors and will so represent 
themselves in all regards. Neither party is the agent of the other, and neither may make 
commitments on the other's behalf. The parties agree that no Open Cities employee or contractor 
is or will be considered an employee of Customer. 

13.2 Notices. OpenCities may send notices pursuant to this Agreement to Customer's email 
address provided by Customer, and such notices will be deemed received 24 hours after they are 
sent. Customer may send notices pursuant to this Agreement to the person identified in Schedule 
A at the email address provided for such person, and such notices will be deemed received 72 
hours after they are sent. 

13.3 Force Majeure. No delay, failure, or default, other than a failure to pay fees when due, will 
constitute a breach of this Agreement to the extent caused by acts of war, terrorism, hurricanes, 
earthquakes, other acts of God or of nature, strikes or other labor disputes, riots or other acts of 
civil disorder, embargoes, or other causes beyond the performing party's reasonable control, 

13.4 Assignment & Successors. Customer may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights or 
obligations hereunder without OpenCities' express written consent. Except to the extent forbidden 

16 

58 



in this Section 13 .4, this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties' 
respective successors and assigns. 

13.5 Severability. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the parties hereby waive any 
provision of law that would render any clause of this Agreement invalid or otherwise 
unenforceable in any respect. In the event that a provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid 
or otherwise unenforceable, such provision will be interpreted to fulfill its intended purpose to the 
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will 
continue in full force and effect. 

13.6 No Waiver. Neither party will be deemed to have waived any of its rights under this 
Agreement by lapse of time or by any statement or representation other than by an authorized 
representative in an explicit written waiver. No waiver of a breach of this Agreement will constitute 
a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement. 

13. 7 Choice of Law. This Agreement will be governed solely by the internal laws of the State 
of California, including without limitation applicable federal law, without reference to: (a) any 
conflicts of law principle that would apply the substantive laws of another jurisdiction to the 
parties' rights or duties; (b) the 1980 United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International 
Sale of Goods; or ( c) other international laws. The parties consent to the personal and exclusive 
jurisdiction of the federal and state courts of San Francisco, California. This Section 13.7 governs 
all claims arising out of or related to this Agreement, including without limitation tort claims. 

13.8 Dispute Resolution. If at any time a dispute arises out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the parties will have their respective designated representatives meet in good faith 
with a view to resolving the dispute within a period of 15 Business Days from the issue of a written 
notice of dispute by one party to the other party. Should the parties not be able to resolve the 
dispute within the 15 Business Days, then both parties will refer the matter to their own appropriate 
level of senior executive management respectively for resolution. If the relevant senior executive 
management are unable to resolve the dispute within a further 10 Business Days, then the parties 
agree that the dispute must then be referred to mediation. The parties will agree on a suitable person 
to act as mediator having industry knowledge and expertise to facilitate resolution. Failing 
agreement on such appointment, either party may apply to JAMS to appoint a mediator. The 
dispute for mediation must be heard within 20 Business Days of a mediator being appointed. 
Nothing in this clause is intended to preclude a party from seeking equitable or injunctive relief. 
Neither party shall have the right to initiate litigation until 30 Business Days after the second 
mediation conference held by the parties, unless the other party has materially breached its 
obligation to mediate. 

13.9 Conflicts. In the event of any conflict among the attachments to this Agreement, the 
documents incorporated herein be reference and the main body of this Agreement, the following 
order of precedence will govern, with lower numbers governing over higher ones: (1) any 
OpenCities policy posted online, including without limitation the AUP or Privacy Policy, (2) the 
main body of this Agreement; and and (3) any other attachment or document. 

13 .10 Construction. The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement result from negotiations 
between them. This Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either party by reason 
of authorship. 

17 

59 



13.11 Technology Export. Customer will not: (a) permit any third pa11y to access or use the SaaS 
in violation of any U.S. law or regulation; or (b) export any software provided by OpenCities or 
otherwise remove it from the United States except in compliance with all applicable U.S. laws and 
regulations. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Customer will not permit any third 
party to access or use the SaaS in, or export such software to, a country subject to a United States 
embargo (as of the Effective Date, Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, and Syria). 

13 .12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement of the parties and 
supersedes all prior or contemporaneous writings, negotiations, and discussions with respect to its 
subject matter. Neither party has relied upon any such prior or contemporaneous communications. 

13.13 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. 
Each counterpart will be an original, but all such counterparts will constitute a single instrument. 

13 .14 Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended except through a written agreement 
signed by authorized representatives of each party. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of 
this Section 13.14, OpenCities may revise the Privacy Policy, AUP and SLA at any time in 
accordance with this Agreement by providing written notice to Customer or such revisions and 
posting a new version of the applicable document on its website and/or providing a copy of the 
applicable document to Customer, and such new version will become effective on the later of (i) 
the date it is posted or provided or 45 days from the date notice is give to Customer. 

13.15 Marketing. Customer agrees to permit OpenCities to make reasonable reference to the 
Customer's status as a user of the SaaS, including captioned quotations in product literature or 
advertisements, websites, articles, press releases, marketing literature, presentations and the like, 
and occasional use as a reference for potential new users. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

18 

60 



CUSTOMER OPEN CITIES 

By: _ __________ _ _ _ By: - - ---- -------
(signature) (signature) 

Name: Name: 

(print) (print) 

Title: Title: - ----- - - ------ - --- ---- -----

Date: Date: - - --------- - - - - - --- --------

19 

61 



. SECTION IX 
A 

62 , 
. . . . 



BILL NO. 2019-26 ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE REAPPROPRIATION & REVISION OF 
THE CITY OF BELTON FISCAL YEAR 2020 ADOPTED CITY BUDGET. 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2019 under Ordinance No. 2019-4500, the City Council 
approved the Fiscal Year 2020 City Budget; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020 City Budget, anticipated 
cash carry over amounts are now known; and 

WHEREAS, amounts that were approved in the Fiscal Year 2019 City Budget that were 
not spent and need to be reappropriated in the Fiscal Year 2020 City Budget are now 
known; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. In the General Fund, # 010 

INCREASE the balance by $ 723,475 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 010-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Canyover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 40,000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1110 , named Inspection - Salaries - Regular. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 3J00 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1230 , named Inspection-Social Security. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 13,800 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1205 , named Inspection - Health Insurance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 1,300 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1210 , named Inspection - Dental Insurance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 200 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1220 , named Inspection - Vision Insurance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 200 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1215 , named Inspection - Life Insurance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 2,500 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
2100-400-1215 , named Inspection - Workers' Compensation. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 50,000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
4000-400-3020 , named Community Planning & Development - Contractual. 

63 



INCREASE the balance by $ 500,000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
1000-400-8514 , named Legislative - Transfer to General Capital. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 112,375 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 010-
1000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash ca1Tyover to actual. 

SECTION 2. In the General Capital Fund, # 014 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 2,044 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 014-0000-367-9000 , named · Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 500,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 014-0000-391-4610 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 502,044 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 014-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 3. In the Park Fund, # 220 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 239,098 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 220-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 239,098 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 220-
0000-400-9000 , named Park Rainy Day . 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 4. In the Street Impact Fee Fund,# 223 

INCREASE the balance by $ 67,551 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 223-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 67,551 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 223-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

64 



SECTIONS. In the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, # 224 . . . 

INCREASE the balance by $ 115,438 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 224-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 20.693 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 224-
0000-495-7300 , named Capital Outlay - 2019 Dodge Grand Caravan. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 94 745 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 224-
0000-400-3020 , named Contractual. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 6. In the Street Fund,# 225 

INCREASE the balance by $ 567,692 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 225-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Canyover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 6,600 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 225-
0000-400-2055 , named Building Maintenance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 75,900 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 225-
0000-400-4017 , named Asphalt. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 31,900 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 225-
0000-400-4021 , named Crack Sealing. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 15,800 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 225-
0000-400-4048 , named Bridge Maintenance. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 437,492 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 225-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash canyover to actual. 

SECTION 7. In the Markey Parkway Regional Detention Fund, # 226 

DECREASE the balance by $ 275 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 226-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

DECREASE the balance by $ 275 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 226-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day . 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash canyover to actual. 

65 



SECTION 8. In the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund, # 227 

INCREASE the balance by $ 29,928 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 227-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 29,928 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 227-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 9. In the Park Sales Tax Fund, # 229 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 24,820 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 229-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 24,820 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 229-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 10. In the Mayor's Christmas Tree Fund, # 231 

INCREASE the balance by $ 3,005 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 231-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 3,005 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 231-
0000-400-4023 , named Community Supplies. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 11. In the DWI Recovery Fund,# 233 

INCREASE the balance by $ 736 
# 233-0000-367-9000 , named 

(whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
Cash Carryover . 

INCREASE the balance by $ 736 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 233-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

66 



SECTION 12. In the Special Training Fund, # 234 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 3,750 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 234-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 3,750 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 234-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 13. In the Debt Service Fund, # 334 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 875.616 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 334-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 875,616 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 334-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 14. In the Major City Constrnction Fund,# 442 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 23,439 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 442-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 23,439 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 442-
5414-495-7110 , named Bel-Ray Connector Trail- Easements. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 15. In the Street Capital Projects Fund,# 445 

INCREASE the balance by $ 18,415 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 445-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 18,415 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 445-
5312-495-7112 , named Mullen & North Cass-Engineering & Design. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

67 



SECTION 16. In the Sewer Impact Fee Fund,# 460 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 1,401 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 460-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 1,401 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 460-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 17. In the Water Impact Fee Fund, # 462 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 822,387 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 462-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 822,387 (whole dollars) of Expense line item, 
# 462-0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 18. In the Wastewater Fund, # 660 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 1,556,688 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 660-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 389,860 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 660-
0000-495-7300 , named Capital Outlay - Improvements - Streambank 
Stabilization - Project WW2002. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 449.000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 660-
0000-495-7300 , named Capital Outlay - Improvements - Public I & I - Project 
WW2004. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 108,000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 660-
0000-495-7400 , named Capital Outlay - Improvements - Meter Replacement -
Project WW2006. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 609,828 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 660-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

68 



SECTION 19. In the Water Fund, # 662 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 667,387 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 662-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 370.368 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 662-
0000-495-7300 , named Capital Outlay - Improvements - Meter Replacement. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 25,000 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 662-
0000-495-7300 , named Capital Outlay - Improvements - Badger Software. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 272,019 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 662-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 20. In the Golf Fund,# 665 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $ 10,612 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
# 665-0000-367-9000 , named Cash Carryover. 

INCREASE the balance by $ 10,612 (whole dollars) of Expense line item,# 665-
0000-400-9000 , named Rainy Day. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Adjusting cash carryover to actual. 

SECTION 21. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: May 14, 2019 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

69 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



Approved this __ day of __ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City 
Clerk of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for 
first reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, and 
thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2019-__ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of _ _,, 2019, after the second reading 
thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

70 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



SECTION IX 
B 

71 



BILL NO. 2019-27 ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF SOUTHVIEW 
COMMERCE CENTER SOUTH 2ND PLAT LOCATED NW¼ AND SW¼, SEC, 
1, T46N, R33W, IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CLERK TO SIGN THE PLAT FOR 
RECORDING WITH THE CASS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is authorized pursuant to Section 36-35 of the 
Unified Development Code to review and approve, approve conditionally or disapprove 
final plats within a reasonable time after submission; and 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission convened a meeting on April 22, 2019, and 
reviewed and recommended approval of the final plat for Southview Commerce Center 
South 2nd Plat to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this plat meets the standards for platting as set 
forth in the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve 
the plat for recording. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS 
COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Section 3. 

Section 4. 

Section 5. 

That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby concurs with the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission and approves the Southview 
Commerce Center South 2nd Plat. 

The Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the plat, 
acknowledging that the plat meets all requirements of the Unified 
Development Code. 

The plat shall be recorded at the Cass County Recorder of Deeds, and a 
copy kept on permanent file at the City of Belton. 

The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval 
or the approval shall be considered null and void. 

That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage and approval. 

72 



READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: May 14, 2019 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this __ day of __ , 2019. 

ATTEST: 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BEL TON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed 
City Clerk of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly 
introduced for first reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of 
__ , 2019, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2019-__ of the City of Belton, 
Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of __ , 2019, 
after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

73 

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2019 DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 

COUNCIL: C8:J Regular Meeting D Work Session D Special Session 

C8:J Ordinance 0 Resolution 0 Consent Item 0 Chan e Order O Motion 
0 A reement 0 Discussion 0 FYI/U date D Presentation D Both Readin s 

ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Approval of a Final Plat for Southview Commerce Center South, 2nd Plat located south of 155th Street, 
just north of northeast corner of 162nd Street on the east frontage road oflnterstate 49. 

PROPOSE.D CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
Concur with the Planning Commission recommendation of approval. 

BACKGROUND: 
The preliminary plat for Southview Commerce Center was approved by the City Council in June of 2018. 
The preliminary plat was a part of the rezoning of the property to a FCI Flex Commercial/Industrial zoning 
district of the North Scott Corridor Overlay District + Guidelines (NSCOD). The preliminary plat 
provided five lots of various sizes designated for development in the Southview Commerce Center by 
NorthPoint Development. 

Lot 1 in the Southview Commerce Center was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on 
October 15, 2018. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
The Planning Commission considered the request at their meeting of April 22, 2019. The Planning 
Commission recommends approval of the application for Final Plat for Southview Commerce Center 
South, 2nd Plat as the final plat is consistent with the final development plan. The plat meets all final plat 
requirements of Section 36.35 of Unified Development Code. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
1. Ordinance 
2. Final Plat 

74 



-...l 
u, 

~ 

t 
t 
~ 

i 
! 
t 
I! 
~l, ~: ~. ~· 

~ 
SEC, 1, T<l6N, R33W 

(N.T.S.) 

SWcOJRto.Sw1/4. 

CNtooc, oc»,.nos, 

l 
j 

~ 
N 

' '""'-EWrn;, 

ANAL Pl.AT OF 

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 
SOUTH 2ND PLAT 

NW 1/4 AND SW 114. SEC. 1, T46N, R33W 
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

N( ~m. NI: v,. ~1.,-.R.lllf 
FotJHo~~r 

uo. ~ooc,eoo-.,~ 

~ 
COY~~6~~ ft Ii J

12 DfKEWOOo Arn~ 
frilt CQlbltll, .... t/4; 
SCC.1.TWil,IIU.ltr 

rQJ.,;o~~l 
l40 CNI DOC I KIO--l"n '" 

$((;. 1. TC6H, 1tJJ~ J.1:1 
'" CAST 1JN1:, Kil 1/~fi -

~srrMU.~~r'! f- ~ 
!iUK$U ~ ~ § JII 

-"";,J.,,':f. :l{§-(LOrs 174-346) 5 JO -

.- .,., 
StN<iScr HlU. SU.'llst:r HILL SUNSET Hilt. ~ Jtt -

OfKEWOOO AOOITION 
(LOTS 174-346) 

INSTRUMENT# 87438 
Pl.AT BOOK 2, PAGE 63 

POINT OF 21'<0 Pu\T f,l)(llfOo,, 21'<0 P\AT ~ ,_ _ 
BoGINNING FILE. IIISTRtJ,,a,r. FILE. I,,. 

UNPu\rra, .._•:i.,., I 00019 •GE 64 00019 "' =~-- u.,.._.rreo ~
3

~~]

1 ~~J\a, ,,,1~8:3~1 I- -

~r , lOah.1 PAGE ti PAGE l , 151™ STR£tT (MORNiNCSOE 11Rtvi::) ..Jc"JC.,., ' ~~ I 00" I I I 1 
00

,
19 

1 1 ru 
•~ .. "I ~,f:o 1 1 111 1 111111 1 1 -~ I . I , ·~ -~;~ - ~~~.!. ~ -!! l.1!.l ~ ~ I~ l!• .L ~ ~ ~ L" .L •!., ~, " " ,,t .,, :.":i"~~~G 

"'-;,...h,,.,,H __ · l~l).!No r ~ J ~'°""" .,.. ..... ses•n,,w - ,. """""-Lor"· ~~ (""1Ps) ~•• SOUn, 234.5.. '24 _ =•~:,:; "1,\T 

tOUl!IO UCOOI ~,.._ IIARl(l'.A 
(2.·~w, 

0.1° CAST or OQQsOI 

rQNJ 112• SAA .32) M ,CT """' ~ f',!;,,".".~ ClS ,,.., Qr '"'"" ,.,.., . .,., 

UNPLATTEO 
NP SOUTHVIEW 

INDUSTRIAL, LLC 
INSTRUMENT# 8743B 
BOOK 4272, PAGE 71 

R=50.00' 

(IIOl'HStR(D 

L• 37.82"'""'\ 
$57'43_!'56"E l"SJJS 26' 0=43•20•30•~ 

--HOlt>t ~ s. 7 cf'~ ~ ·..,:.J.L•. -
:SCC.1. T""-11t~ .......,~_ 

rocam 18/(Nt (PC\\EU) 
0.1• (AST Of COINCR 

;,,~~~ 

N'31'"29'58'V,r 
15SA8" 1 

LOT 2 S4
7"2s;~;:. 

t-:8,.ltsJ,u 1164..22' 
R=SOO 00' UNPlATTEO 

t '-"'fil ¥;; 

,.,,._,.. 
fOfN.0r$fA'f(t 

;:;; I rnKEwooo AOomoo 
_ l:i (LOTS 17tl-346) 

lll § INSTRUMENT fl. B7438 
_ _ ; PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 63 

J..l.4 ~ st 00R;,o,, ~ 1/'I. 
S(C, I. T4'N,, AJJ• 
Nf 0QlbifR, SW 1/'-. 
sec,_ 1. (4.&I_ llt.).)ff 
fOJJG ROM &IJt OIi COIMJt 
SW CQlt<.U:, Oll<twooo At:101:TION' 
"" 00ll"'8t. NOFNA,.-, nu.er Na. 1 

NORMAN TRACT NO. l 
INSTRUMENT I#- 84032 

PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 39 
$02·:,0,02"\•1 

•~1" '!,.J1ll.,. 

ti 
:i 
f 
~ 
ii 

;~1 

"'"'" ·L" 

;~"-#• ,< -11<00< , ; 1:_ 
i:11<00<, 
~ " 3 -

'1.00< I 

" 
S01'lO'ot'"r I;!:_"~ '·.b.":'~• 

------ lzU',& 12" NP SOUTHVIEW INDUSTRIAL, LLC 
0=20°24'39" INSTRUMENT#- B7436 

2.~.,,· 
IDToU.01$1,l,H(:( 

DEVELOPER: 
NORTHPOINT IIEVELOPI.IENT, L1.C 
4825 NW 41ST SlREET, SlJITE SOO 
RW[RgDE,WSSOURl64150 

BOOK 4272, PAGE 71 
N8S"Jl'Jo•w ~2,.7.r' -- - - --

~~-stv,. 
SCC. I, 1''6N_llJl1t ,.,.., .. __ o,, •• ,, .. l 

ua. Oli!CIOOC., IOO-:>.co~1 

PROPERTY OESCIUPTION: 
A, VIKI of"""' Ill lJI• Swvw..,t .... N"OWV."1-t 0itwt..- •' ~ I, T_n,hlp "6 ~ "-?I JJ tr,W\\ o,I ~" 5 .. 
Pl'iftdMI ~ In 8t,llat1, (;elt C...,,.t,, 14-...-1 bliftrg ~ ... ducrillod <II~~ .... <it 111'>9 
~•t.;o<ns of Mill hlw1/0.Mt 0,..0,1..- CIiio •·q, .... ""°._Ml - •I 0ll(CWOOO AOOlllON (U)JS lh Dftu 
l4o6) • ~ h Mid ui.oi. ..-Oto110. w.t,-t..,._.. 174JS III PIM.IIJIIIII 2. ot ..._.. 1-l" eouc...,,.,, 
~W er~ ~9; u,~ $outfl 0?1:1'1?• WMt. Oft ui,. test IN 1111f MAl!I N-•t o.-1 ... Cll.o ~ tioo. 
Wal ..... of -4 OilCt90lO A001'P0fli (\.DIS 1)'4 fHltU J.4CI), d.to..., 1M C-t U,,,. ,t,f Wt =,i 1:t,r111 C.0. 51.1NS(I ...._ 
ADl'.NllOH, 1111 ~ ii N;.! 8tlklol.-~ oH 11\1\flffl'lwl.\ ~ '6,flU 11'1 fll'a! INI, 1. Ol ,W... 6 • , l,,i .0:,, 
C4» C-lt ftM.«11« ,pP ~ ~. oU,t 11.-.g 1M C..lttl'lf l'.itl( ,...,--01-...,. ai.ti ~ IS71,'1, 'Sr.tM-l O'ldl t&u ... ol' 
l,.ol 73., SUlf'Stl HU. ZN0 flU.r, •~I\ Nld 6',l9,. ..-.dllllcl am n. ~ J llll l 1111 Plat l8<Nli OOOlt, 411 
~ 0019. •A'-v,11.,278.07 FMI 11111 h~ ,__.,_,,loot 1)..._.., ...... "'91Pvn.l of 11~.i 
... IPO(.I ol liM,jl a. .. ......:;.~ UW!<e c;et\l~ S.,.,111 02'2t"l2." Watt - .,.., Vul ._ 11114 .... QIXDrl0QO 
UIDl'IICN (LOn u, 1MtU 346). o ~~ of l,ll0.13 , ... 14 SO,..llt .. ,t mm.-" or ~ Ol(DIO('XJ .-.oor,·INJJ,I (\.Ors 
17~ 'QtltU J46). 111M ~ 'ltl!II N4itt,,•f41 «wMr alHOll!W.'t 11tACT HQ. I. o ~ h. IOi!I BD.10M.1~1111d OS 
IMt,wow,,t pl......,~ Ill,.,._ l,pGI,; 2 Ol f>ete .H Ir! ..uConeo-\J'IR__,.Q.fl>Md, ~--11,.,;..g 1M 
SC,..,,~l _._ ol PCilit /qfth.,.il ~ • ...0 d.o.,...... lM Noru.-t ~ Ill MN Swv-. .. .:t 0-.a,: l-. 
Sv.il1! O'f'JO'Di" Wut. 11111 1M C." •• •f aald Soullw .. t Wffl.,. dN INhf ..,.. W•t lftto •I _. HOllbWil IRACT NO. 
I. Ill Mtac,a Clf 2S2.n ""'t \lo VM, ~t ~ •F pnlpCIMd -SOIJlHl,,t'II' CCMilDtC( CO/Tt,t ~nt; tllcftc:<1 lfWOi 
01'21'$&" W<llt. CIII ~ K~erl7 !No Of tod ~nl!lawd SQIITI,V(W ~ COl?tll: SCl.ls:11,. 1""'4 1h41: I.fl~ 
$e,,v,, 47'?0''4" Wwt."" ~ lJ.xllhllrl, ..... 70..64 '"t: i,,-.. S.,~ 02"2l•21• "-"- .,_ liold Ntwittet11 ""11. 514.0l 

~~ ":."'o -~~: ~ .. :w:: =:::rto--:.-,:a::t~I•= ~0-= ~.001:'o 
<MIUd _.,.. c;i 2074".»" OM - .-c A'-" ol 176.12 fMt,: ~ $wt.lo 71"STl'a'" Wut,..,. "Id 11'...tllMt ...... 
let..Sl f.C ~ ""1rlh 1,l'Ol'J:t' fllp\,. °"' Mkl .,_....,. ....._ UJ'.1..1 IMI -. o ~I oit IN t.diit,,,,e C.:.1,.-17 

:?:tR:-::~:., "t~~~¼~.;;-;rr:.~~~ ~~t!""~~M_~-~~~-
~ nor,r £.o1.1. ~,.... ••t 1MM,a Norttl 11~1"21· r.tl. "4,12 '"~ ...,.u Cm'-1t, "" o cur,,,. 16 Ill.It ~l. 
~ l~I t,o 11!<1 Int~ ~ w.tll. o raoAil, ,pl JIS.CO ,_.l. • tallY -.,i. OI' 20'24'J~" .... "" ,_, 
di,~ ef 112,.21 FMl: ~ Srt,,;U, a.?~'r.,6• [0.1, 1.~ ~~~.MO - kl~ ldl,, ~ 

~~~~ ~t ~~ :1~~ ~~_, ,:t'° ~: :=.._ ~t 4!,~~ = =~~= 01 
dfl. o N6Y1 ot 60.00 1c>tt. o twrc1 ..._,.. •' 1.ll"l1V 111'4 - 4'tC disl06Cc of lMM 1-t.: "'- S..u, t:1"lC·l1• 
[<nl. 5.00 fut: Cb-.. Nlll"dl 02"1J'a" tut. 1.100.lt 'cct ti • ~ .,_ \114 $oo,\II, I~ of 9Qlf ~stl ..is :v.t) 
~T: .,_ S..,\l<I M-u·,r '••t. ... "'"" 1l.li:I S..tJri ....... "4.Y, IMl ta UM --.n t 91 ~64-~ 
1,190,0ICI .,...a-.. ,.., """:50.047 d«ti,. -. ..- i.n., 

•~. 
A lmc:I. of land In ia. NorlhMI o-tr of SIIIICU.. 1, ~ '6 Ho,'1,11, fl-.. l3 ,rut 11114 ~~Ill~ 
lolcrldlon In Bolton, e.n e..,,,17, "--.N..,.., ~ .W ~ 11111 ~ ~ ol; IN H"..-u.-., 
~e194'11Nttll'l• utOr.>ol\Cl"~fMl'i91/14,~«-et"OlmctVi000"°°'1'10N (I.OJ'$ 114 JMil!JJ.46)o 
~ h Milo Ut.M. recorOed m lnll~t N.-1111« 8-74J.I 1,rri Plllt 8c<1o11 2, a( P'ega Hi. C,e.tt c:-11 ~
•• Oet,d1 Ork,e; lll...c. SOu\:JI ~It" v.e,t. OIi h (Ml 1M of ,..a ~di a.-,;.,. WM ~ l,'\4' West fli'!• •f 
.a:.t Ol<tVOOO AODl'ICH (l.OT'S 11• ~ )48). mo~ tf>• C•\ UM •I Loot. ~I ll:hl\l W. SUl'l!n KU. AOOIIION, o 
~-, ~S.llo,,, t~ 1!.11 hW\HMf\l ~ SM6J h~ lid. :Z. •t ... , .. h seliG C4n Clo,,,fitf 

~ ~ °=~~-~ ~ ~ ~:i:~~';;1;{. ~)~\'"~~ = i:!t-:;,:~ L:: ~ 
OOlt. Ill, ,ial5 C.U Coi,i,ty~(llo' ., OciMII Ofkia. o dlt-ll:ll'ICIJ 4111 ,,;tH.O't •• , l.o 1/'14. ~I -- ol Mld u,t 
7J,; U..-~ a,"ZB"er Wat. «i "'· to,,,.,. 11M ., ...;.a; 'SILJNa"t HU ADOfflON CM ~ HU. 2NO Pu.T, ... 
ii.I W•wlt ..,-~ e1w 11o!oft9tw1 Ute'°""' i...oraw«:i l«.l~"r.Oil." 11:11 £Qwt1 v~ o ~ 
I,, ..:.t Ulc,11,. t-~ ,::n ... \r\P'n4'11 ~ 10U7 ~ lo(lli; J, ,ol PllP;,e 40, • ~ el 't;,:)'t..S., tul kl o (IOll.l 
.,..Mld~121Q,e,o4 N4Ql!ANl)1a.LAOOITIO(.ollo,_,,4 IM~ ~~ofllhe t,-ei;.\llllf..,..!6~"ertift 
"'-•.«: lh..,,aii 1111111 .. MW S.,tll I.tie, So..vJ. O:t"U"1e• Wint. tl7..81 ...._ loo"°"'' en ... tdi.i...., [,nl.-,r 
~ - 01-,-,ate. u.s. ~ 71, o,, - u~ ~ 1w111 1att:z'J.1" -.iut. Oft 1o.1 Caltu"f t.1w1r tf1\t-01-...., ~ ~,, I.et ~ Hor-,.t,-.,. Mill~ C.O•t-'rn;f'l1_., _ _,, ....._ ,pill o wr.. ta - r1cM,. 
U"""9 ~t lo IN ioll .:.C~ - .:illl o rvcli,,t Of ),o,;e.00 fNt. 0 ~ O#rf/M of tl"OCTOO" °"41 C,. Ol"C ==~ !~J~lff~:-:: ~oo~rH~~.:: ~~~~il;ol~6~1,_t:,!~,1~ 
So;i\l'I e.,-z,a"47" Coit. 11'1 tai4 $0,,tll ~ 27;.c,7 l«I 10 V14~l of~. 0:.\ ........ •~~• IHI ,ot 
l,.!lloan,-..,-~ 

OM~ o IOt.d •• :Z.,J.»,1!19 IICll,NII• ilffl ,q,t » .601 «r,t:J. -• or 1ku. 

SURVEYORS NOTES: 

l , ,,,..,., hliOl'l'IIOticwl fflllf4f'lcbJ ~ ....... , •lltl td.:<111 ._ Ul4I C.OO-,ltrtl4f'II r.,- tli:. 

~~~:;r.Jlo:..°t~==d~~l;:;~~~~ 
c.ENlER SOUTH. 

2. &otfnp uud hwec111 are bo.ced en HID l,IJ,souti Stale Pfofta Coordinolc s,.LcrA, H~ 1983. 
WalZQl\11, 

i;~\1 ~==~;~•,::;I~~~~~~ .... ~~ 
.;...:. noocr Z- Y . (Atecs dellffiWWd to"' ouu-ot •"- 0.1A ...- "'°""" ~ 
4,. h llfffl ..-~ 11 1111 ,-,.,.-i(a to OIAND HU, ADQl"IIQt,j t~ Ol lnl"-1 Nl,I/IIIIW 
10HJ In 0.0,.. l ol Peo- «l, ~ lotU, ZNO PU,1' rKIIAIMI " n., I l~a&JI ;,,_ ""I looir, 
oocnt ~ POQ<I OOlt. ~E i..._ IJXM~ ..--o:IN 111'"1 ""'-11\Ul'\elll PouTIN" 14,NJ '- ,.., .,_., 
2 01 Pol;, 14, OIKt'IIOOOMIOUQf •~ 0$ lo\f."'-'el\t......, 874-10 k "°'- Soet 2 oC '°9a
llJ OISd ttOINAH 111M:Tti0. I,_.. Gtlll.t"-'9111 ~ MOD k ,..., IIOOlil 2otPOia J9 
k ~ Gaotlly it-"4 ol 0eca ow.c.,_ 

-· -----· .......,., ----..!!:!!!!: 

I HtlllB'I' CClilTlf'l'l: ntAT 
~'o'ISIOMl$(11A.Stt)QII 
NG tkAl" - -

"''""'"" -OO'MNDIT 
ARC 11,,\SO) 1 . . . . . _ . . . . -· --· . . _ _ _ 
08S(lt'tA'tKINS TMA.T 'M: SGTIQN ANO stCntlw.. ~Otl COM.,;(Jl M~fS ANO 
~ lnllillART ~ IO,IUIIO(J" \IIOIC onca rcv,io Ollt $(T A$ 1HOIC4lm OIi -n-s PLAT; 
tMAr K lOI 00A),tJtS AHO srmrr ctNlOII.M:S KA.~ 9COI MA,lbl;[J) ·™ POa,lilitNT 
~1A'IQII AS NllC:Al!D Ott ™S fl'I..A~ l'MAT 11-tAvt. COUIUW M[H ALL 'STAft MO 
fllll..YOJ,t ST"' 'IUts. ORDN.WOCS AHO llttGIIU,'nOH'S ~c: IH£ l"IIAC"na or~ N'10 
'DC Pu.ff.NC Of~ 10 THC l!ICS1 or MY' P9'Qfl.SSQIM. IOtOJll1.CDCI: A.'ilO IQJU. 

CUSON, \10 a.s JM 
.i,,.S(M S, AQJl0t1IU'!.H. MO PLS 20020140!12 
i.WIQ41, ,2011 

-"I -----l:!!! -~ ------"' .. _. ..... ~ 
1 .. ,...,. Yn>rl•a>ra!7-YQ 

C 
0 
~ -0 

I 
I 

s~ 
ri!ij 

J~ 
• 
l • ! j 
·11 i1a ~11 
M 

ATTN: BR(TT CROSS ~'Ol'=ii'-.: ffi,.a:, -

~ -~o 1~3 

_,____,,.,. 



--.J 
O'I 

r 
i 
~ 

! 
i 
I 
.!, 

~ 

i! §_ 

Iii ,~ 
~" 

~ 
SEC. 1, T46N, R33W 

{N.T.S) 

I 
7 

FOUNDie/t'.AP(~ 
0,2' £AsT OF ~ 

N00"02'32"'W 
61.fJI" 

~ 
N 

' .~ 
,c,u:~,u, 

FINAL PlAT OF 

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 
SOUTH 2ND PLAT 

NW 1/4 AND SW 1/4, SEC.1, T46N, R33W 
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

,.,. 

I c----------------------- , r s~zg~~LL s~~~L 

'-- J: r J:. --, :j:. , •"°"002,., I 300761 , I 
I 

ooo1
9 (Morningside Drive 

~OHILLAOOHION / u.,.;%TTEO j ------u;,~rr~o-----------=:=d-t::::~ /f Fl!..Ep~?5JI \fNST~~t'Ut, S~SE~~L.1. 

F1'1Sr~,.,fNT11105S1 ! 
1
NSfflUMISNT" I WO Br»f x,- ,..,,y : I BOOK0001g I PlAt800I(/ FllE:,ii ::ua531 r;:: - 800f(JpAGE40 _j e 217137 ~SlRUtl.£Nt t ,,7 P~cc3 1 PA(;EOOis PAGE~ ~PlAt800i( 

rc;:-~;:~1 .... ., - , -· ~~i2 

1 m'i= : 
1 1 

I r 
1 1

1 1
1 

, PAGE001• 
- - ' ~I ,:::..) ---•-OHICJO-Qoo.o74000 PAACa 10 t I I I I ' ,....,, - - - - - - - - 't_ .,..,--0,-000...,...,,,000 "" ..,,.,,, ,.~ I I I I I I I 

J N8"~'47"W - - - - fttJO,f J1;n PAC( ,.507· I 10 U t. 
I S! S"2!"474E 2.27955' 'OIJ!tO 2· .u.u~- ~ .._ - - - - _--. - ~ UP!..4 J ID' U£ t!PfR IIIV,r) I ~- C r I [ "'"""'"Y I ... ,.,. 2?~0~ ,_,,..,._ -~~co, , •• ,, •. r -- { --±...::-t.::~ .,J:- Q -1- -u~ ./2;'""' ~ Q:\ J.I "•c \.,...,J I I / I 

<>•·~~ ' , l/&::";-~' en ,. '""·•"-'« ~~~- ""' - - - - ==l=f..\. '.::.." .::..-1::..-~ -.::L- -"- - ,- -"L- ~L k.; 
I ~O~ \ \ =.~ ----.r..-~ 

1: J22 

1: ... ____ _ 
' I 32.l 

\ 
~ ~!!!!, S8S-:la'-4Te 1 ~.........,...... 234.59' 

~1; ~ 1 
TRACTC 

I S02'U'1'1"• 
-12.1'.GT 
f-~ --
l..,: 2 DIKEWOOD 

I -11! C ';. OE.TE'.NTI0tl 

\ 

,p..,,, ,~s.o-Hsa.n. 
(;lo· .J.!il!I~ 
,S .I 

\ I 1 UNPLA TTED 

DEVELOPER: 
NOR.ll\POINT DEVELOPMENT, U.C 
~25 NW 41ST STREET, SUITE SOD 
RIVERSIDE. MISSOURI 64150 
ATTN: BRETT GROSS 

\ NP SOUTHVIEW 
\ l:i INDUSTRIAL, LLC 

-t INSTRUMENT# 

\ 

\ 

a 630310 
~ 800K4272 
:; PAGE71 
;;: 

i 

I 
\ 
I 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\\ 
I ' 

PLAT DEDICATION: IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF· 
The undersigned 011ner.ioftheQbovcdescrlbcd lroctofland ho\'G caus,,d tho some to 
bo subdMdod In lho m11nnu OIi shawn on tho oi:companylng plal, which • ubdlvblon and HP 'SOulMY.:(W ~ U.C.. a Om.,,.. Dlllllld lklbllty ~pony licensed lo 
plat shall h=fter bo known~ clo t,,,,1','I.,.,_ 11'1 u-.,. ,IGI• Gf ~. t,o,i ~ Illes<! pr-nl:!I to be O!IC""'l.lled 

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER SOUTH 2ND PLAT 
BUILDING LINES: 

... __ .,,., - ---- ''"~ 
NP SOIJlH\IIEW INDUSTRIAL. Ll.C. 

Bulkllng llnes or setback llne=i Q~ hel'eby C!lllclbll,tu,d, O! 9hown on tha ocaimponylng o Dllllo•11r<:1 llmllad lloblllty carnpany 
plot, and no bundlng or portion lherecr :shcU be bullt between lhls llne end the let line. 
neanistlher11lc. 

STREET DEDICATION: 
Strn.bl :sho•n hereon 11nd net heralorun. dedlc:aled rOI" pubHc u:1111 011 streiGt 
right-of-11oy 11ra hl!Rbyd1dtWl.ed. 

MAINTENANCE OF TRACTS: 
Traci Band TRACT C within SOUTHVlEW ca.wERCE C:&ITER. ~TH 2ND PLAT L, to be 
ueed ,:i=, o dot,:,nli,;,n fadlity and shall bo mointalnod by tho awnoni of 1h11 lolll, lrocta, 
ond porcols :shOffll wlthlll this plol 

nr.t. 111111 •f SOUTl-lv.tw ~ ~fflll SOUTH 2ND PL.AT ha:i b11e<1 15Ubmlllod Lo 
~ ~

1
';'."UJ"" ~ClofMlla=rlon lhb ___ doyar 

Secretary 

Sk!•ol! ____ _ 

County or ___ _ 

Be It nunomben11d thoton this __ doyof ____ 2019, before 
me-, a Nolory Publlc In mid fOI" the- county ond slate ~Id, came 
___ ta ma per=onollyknoirn to be thl!. ,soma pe-r.ron •ho eqculed Iha 
fOl"~aln9 ln5lrumentotwrfUng and dulyodu10111h1d9e thee:>:ecUUon orthe11FOme. 
In le=llbnonywhe-rcc1, lhove.he-reun(03ctmyhond ondolflud my notary seal 
lhedayond~rabovcwrllte,i. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: 

lhav1 herountautmyhcnd and affludmyNotarlal Seal In the date heraln 
last above wrlllen. 

l.ly CGnmiDion &pirea: _____ _ 

Th=• -=ta and rlght!l-of-wcy ccQGfll.ed by 1h11 Clly C.:.uncM al Ballan, l,lfss1111rf N~ary P..UC-
~- __ da~ al~ 20!9. 

Mayor Jeff Dovt,, ATTEST: c=,~=o.,.~7,,~.,-~~c.~,~.,,~,,-om-

Enlllll!Jd ,in lrondar r~ lhia _ doy of ___ _ 

l:::s1}?4 ADDITION 
i:.»"" ..J!:OTS 174-136) 

7 - INS";';!;Nr# 
325 

PLAT BOOK 2 
PAGE63 --- - -

SURVEYORS NOTES: 

I, hoofft1 ln-.,_t.lM ld<IIIU\eMIO ~ -., Tfl lelc,I ~ llhl, ~I (Oo' ~I 
~ ~ .-,a.,,~ 1i!J,i, 11,.N'QIK• C-.-w. ~t ,.,._ 1.asis,!i, Urti:u.. 
.AH111 ,II, 1'01111 al ll!tOO iUL DIii ~ <!~t~ ~ ~ ~ 501,fll•-l'•O ~ 
CQiilTOI SOUIH. 

2. Bearin~ used h=n an, baaad on the Mlauurf State Prone C.:.ardlnole SyslMI, NAO 118J, 
Wa:slZona, 

~~l ~~ "a:\•-:.·o1=~:::...2:'°~r:. ~~ 
..iu,., fb:,,;11 ~ Y, &,,.at <-l!lfl'IAIIIII WO IMI ~ IN 0.2X llt.'l'IAI dlm<.e loadoiain,) 

4, ~ t.4"ffl ,._ p,l (!,I qi I, r,t..-...:. ll' 0ftlJ'0 Hll. ,-c(ll1f0tl rKQl'INII ot 11\• in-Ml tf,lft'6« 
I QIMl7 Ii, Owl!. J. lilt ~ 40. $Ut.lSCI' Kll 2ND P\.Af r-~ ,w. f<i• I .lole&JI \tr, Plot e,;
oo:II j ii, P09' (N)I .. SU!rStT l«.L AUCffl(:,.I ,_.:.du .. .,_t tuna MAU In Plat ifkidr. 
2 91 It..,. '4. OIM:D000 Al)(MTION ,~ <1a lnalrummit Number 87438 In Plot Book 2 <rt Pago 
dJ, - NOlliu.N TAJ,,Ct HO. I ,~ o, ln:11.n,mei,t Numb"" 84032 in Pieri B<Klk 2 <it P11g11 39 
I• Jid.'MI! c..riiy tt-Jri:.c! ol ~• Qtcu-. 

ll\LS PL.AT AND SUR\IEY OF SOIJTHVlE:W COli!l.'ERCE CENlER SOUTH 2NO PL.AT \'ERE EXECUlED BY 
a.ssoN, 1301 BURUNGlON smEET 1100, NORTI-1 KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 04110, 

CENTERLINES Ho\\lE BEEN M, 
ON ll\lS PLAT; TI-IAT I HAI/£ COMPLIED \11111-1 

Ba.TOH STAllJES, OfrolN,_N~ AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING TH.E PRACTICE OF 
THE PLATTING Of SIJ801V1SION TO TI-IE BEST OF MY flROFESSIOt,U,L KNOWLEDGE ,_ND 

_., ____ _ 
_ ..... -......!!!S 
...-.. .... ----.,!!!! 
_,,,, .. ,,.,.,, __..Ii!! --~ , .. ...., vn>T•11111mD¥<1 

I 
C ! 

;: 

~ ~i .. ~ 
• Cl) ~ ! - Ii~. 0 r~ ~n 
M 

d --
SHEET 
? nf3 



~ 
SEC, l, l46N, R33W 

(N,T.S.) 

f 

-..J 
-..J 

R=315.00' 
L• 112.21' 
0=20"24'36" 

Ii E 160TH STREET 
(R/W WIDlrt VARIES) 

\ 
I 

\ 
! \ i \ '{~-
! \ ;\ 
! \ ,\ 
1 \ ~y 

~ \ \\\\; ~ \ •-c, 
i! \ \ 
i• \ \\ ;:;.2 \ 

FOUND MODOT R/W MARKER 
(2' AW~NUM CAP) 

O.I' EA.ST Or CORNER 

,fl'.IIJti(l,81(:1,P(flMClMl(} 
O. t ' EA$T 0, ~ 

~ 
N 

' 

ANAL PLAT OF 

SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE CENTER 
SOUTH 2ND PLAT 

~.L ~,,,,.,.-it•• -f -,-,:.~:...,._Tl~~ 1 • .zrur :::::> U<i-59• I ~ - - - -

,-.~.v 114 ANO SW ti•, SEC. I . T46N, R33W 
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

1,569.26' 
~7'56"E 

UNPLATTED 
NP SOUTH VIEW INDUSTRIAL, UC 

INSTRUM~NT # 630310 
BOOK 4272 PAGE 71 

R,.,50.00' 
L• 37.8t 

0=43"20'30" 

_ __ _ __ _ s:i:,~~Zr-- _ ( E 160TH STREET lOO'FrAV) ___ _ 

S8'7'lnti ,.,i.97,a,r 

SOU™IJlct.rrlf l/<1 
__ ~l-t"!l-41,.Uir~ 

~~:~~-7- - - --

LOT2 
1,1555,08.3 SQ, FT. 

J.lll!ill<IACRES 

S8S"28'41"'E 
234,!59" 

S87"36'"3t"e ..... 

;;;; 
~r 
"' 

.-, 

i/ 

" 

~ 
~ 

... ;~ 

.i 
s::: 

:w '-ll• DIKEWOOO 
1=»~ ADDITION 
!!t-::.. -1!:0J§ !.Z..4-!_36) 
·~ INSTRUMENT# 

~ 325 PLA':-1~2 
l--~~6=-

,,. 

,,. 
~§ 
""~ 11 
,:I 

TRACT B 
DETENTION 

J70,217SQ, FT. 
8.~ ACRES 

I ,,. 

1, 
L SOT29'12°w'Y 

~

jw;ir- · . 

"" I 
- I 

"' 

.w 

-----
1: ~s!i JJ, 
I:.,.~( 
I• 

SURVEYORS NOTES: 

1. Pr~y ... fomioUollrcf•~ U',b, ~- lolwl irClft'I Ulc 
Cotti~ 11or lalol ... ~fll!OOfl,,UiKd~~T<'llt~ 
~:,. c.-,n;~.,,t fk. •~-m. [l'-'c;t),,,, ~- "· :lei\& i.i 8:00 A.M. 
IMI lc<lll ~t:.:i,,. ollO \l!,d,H!ed ~ ~flN.tWCOWOIDt« 
CENTER SOUTH. 

2. Bearings u..i hcri!:Ol'I ore t,as.o,d Ol'l th1 Ui-1 Slole Pldf\e Coorcrnate 
Sy.item, NAO 1963, Went Zll<la. 

½.o=-.t°Wect~~~ =;: ~~\t~t--
~ lll~OIIII ~ .._.,_,,.._ ...;"""" l"loolil z- °r', 
(A,-- Goll...-..0 lO M Ollhll!ilo Ill• o-2' ~ ~ f..«p!Oli<,) 

4. 1bo lMffl p,w-~\ b i,,i 1c,!_.,el'le• to CftANO 1tU AOl)lnQH rKa'W\11 ,n 

~.=:r!,"n:'i l1:li : = ~ ~. ~ ::.;.c~~ l'LA..l._ 
AQOIIJO,/~dldesl'l•nn,.,,......, il!le,8,) IJl"°'910ocilr Z 4t FIDf:• 
6 <10 ~ ol,(l()no,f ,_dMI H ~I~ 111t.)8 lo, l'IO\ 

~~~•-·~-:w-~ ~\;o~'~c:!t~~~ ol --

h-- -----
W><'1'""0, ~ -· __,,, -·--"' --~ ,.,....,.u,·..,.1tm!llD,',:<; 

C 

Sl 
Cl) 

0 

I 
t 
I 

,3 

~~ 
~~~ 
• 
!i ' g i 

iP J s 
~11 
M i'; DEVELOPER: \\ \\ U.\'Pt.AHEb ml~;;:~'W ----------~ ., OLSSllN.MOQ.SJA f:1 NORDfOINt DEVn.Of'MOIT. u.c \\ NPSOUTHVIEWINDUSTRJAL, UC 1,184.22' ~ .lo\1Qil s,, ~ MO PLS 200201'-<n12 SHEET 

ti~ :~~E-•~~;4,~ '°° \ '!5;i~~~~~feJ:~~o 1i - - ~f.c(»,l 3 of 3 i.a AT'Tll: BIIETT GROSS • \ 



SECTION XIV 
A 

78 



506 Main Street Belton MO 64012 
P 816.331.4331 www.belt on.org 

MEMO 

To Mayor Davis and Belton City Council 

From Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk and Custodian of Records 

Re Request for Records Fee Waiver 

Date May 14, 2019 

Background 

On April 29, 2019, the City received a Request for Records from Michael Larkey on behalf of the Belton 

Post Office. He requested plot plans for Emerson Park Addition, specifically engineered plans that indicate 

elevation lines. Upon receiving information from the Belton Engineering Department, I wrote a letter to 

Mr. Larkey on May 1, 2019, stating the cost for his requested documents was $72.18. 

On May 3, 2019, Mr. Larkey sent Mayor Davis a letter asking for the $72.18 fee to be waived. On May 7, 

2019, I emailed Mr. Larkey stating the Missouri Open Meetings and Records Act {"Sunshine Law") allows 

for fees to be waived, but only under precise guidelines. Staff did not believe his request fit within those 
guidelines. On May 8, 2019, Mr. Larkey sent me an email stating why he believed his request did meet the 

guidelines and asked that I reconsider the waiver denial. · 

On May 9, 2019, I emailed Mr. Larkey that I did not have the authority to waive the fee; only the City 

Council has that authority under Section 610.026.1, RSMo. I informed him I would bring his request pefore 

City Council tonight for consideration. (see attached documentation) 

State Statutes 

Section 610.026.1, RS Mo allows governmental bodies to charge a fee for copying public records as well as 

a fee for duplicating time, not to exceed the average hourly rate of pay for clerical staff of the public 

governmental body. 

Further, the same statute allows the documents to be furnished without charge or at a reduced charge 

when the public governmental body {e.g., the City Council) determines that waiver or reduction of the fee 

is (1) in the public interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the 

operations or activities of the public governmental body and (2) is not primarily in the commercial interest 

of the requestor. 

Staff Recommendation 

It is not the practice of the City of Belton to waive record request fees. It takes considerable staff time 
away from regular duties to fulfill requests. The state allows for compensation by asking the requestor to 

pay the hourly staff rate of pay. 

79 



The City staff and City attorney do not believe this record request meets the criteria outlined in Section 

610.026.1, RSMo (discussed above) as an allowable reason for waiving the fee. It does not contribute 

significantly to public understanding of the operations or activities of the City. It is also in the primary 

interest of the requester. Therefore, staff recommends the City Council respectfully deny this request for 
waiver. 

City Council Action 

The City Council has three options 

1. Approve the request for a fee waiver. 

2. Approve a reduced charge for this request. 

3. Deny the request for a fee waiver. 

The City Council's decision will be a motion, second, and voice vote on one of these three options. 

80 



This is a request for records under the Missouri Sunshine Law, Chapter 610, Revised Statutes of Missouri 

Custodian of Records - Belton City Clerk's Office 

admin@belton.org 

Choose one 

© If you know the specific records you're requesting 
I request that you make available to me the following records: 

506 Main Street Belton, MO 64012 
816.331.4331 
www.belton.org 

(Describe the records as specifically as possible. Where you are asking for records that cover only a 
particular period, such as last year or a specific month, identify that time period.) 

..f-o r £ 1V\J2 .rse ~ 1 ~dJ),·~i-? f \I ot-· ~I C\ n 5 

pi, v-1-,'cl,/l~rf/ 
-t( eu Ct +r\9 i,_ 

(2 t11t'crfl-{/1(? r~e( ·1'114-/ J ~-1 ~' 
1

<cl k-
lrt'V'-eS 

,/ 

0 If you know the subject matter. but aren't sure of the specific records ~2930.1 
I request that you make available to me all records that relate to (include the subject m : .._ 7, ~ 
(Be as specific as possible. Include dates, if you can.) '/t,? ~ ~.;> 

~ RECE\VED ~ 
~ APR 2019 ~ 
N Q:I 
~ City Cler\( ~ 
o. Belton, MO "c 
,--C--& " 

Vei 1," 
I request the records responsive to my request be copied and sent to me at the following a .9~~\.~\, 
portions of the request records are closed, please segregate the closed portions and provide me with 
the rest of the records. 

l z, Brwlfeoa/ lvt No U/6/Z 
Mailing address J, _ /J City / State 

Or emailed to M ,' e,hae/, ~ti //.eLJ (!!5 b C(j/Ob{d I. M.-f--
Zip 

Please let me know in advance of any search or copying fees, if the fees exceed $ ____ _ 
(Insert the amount you are willing to pay without additional information about the documents.) 

0 I request that all fees for locating and copying the records be waived. The information I obtain 
through this request will be use to: 
(Please state how you will use the information and why that use is in the public interest and not just for 
personal or commercial interests.) 

City 

Email 

81 

,,1,,p bC/612 
State Zip -4 
l{{ J/ ll-11 fJ _9bc q qf. 

. J 

Revised 1/2019 

;-- . 



506 Main Street Belton MO 64012 
P 816.331.4331 www.belton.org 

Michael Larkey 

Michael .larkey@sbcglobal.net 

May 1, 2019 

This letter is in response to your request for information under the Missouri Sunshine Law, Chapter 610, 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, re: Emerson Park addition plot plans on April 29, 2019. 

The cost for researching the documents requested is $72.18. Payment is required prior to the City 

providing the information requested. A check may be remitted to the City of Belton, Attn: Andrea 

Cunningham, City Clerk, at 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012. You may also drop it off at City Hall. 

While we understand it can take extra time to remit a check, please contact me by May 15, 2019, if you 

plan to proceed with your request. If I have not heard from you by May 15, 2019, I will consider this 

request closed. 

Sincerely, 

Andrea Cunningham 
City Clerk 

82 



Mayor Jeff Davis 

May 3, 2019 

National Association of Letter Carriers 
Branch 30 
Steward 

and 
Fonnal Step A 

Michael W Larkey 

Mt. Mayor I recently made a sunshine request in which I requested as a representative of 
the National Association of Letter Carriers (NALC). The sunshine request was to get 
information to verify the location of an agreed boundary line established in a Triparty 
agreement from 1995 between the NALC, NRALC and the US Postal Service. 

The grievance procedure is out lined in Article 15 of the National Agreement between the 
NALC and the US Postal Service, therefore this is official Postal Service business. 
Do to the nature of this request coming from one government organization to another. I 
am requesting a waiver of the $72.18 fee requested in the response letter ( copy enclosed), 
dated May 1, 2019, to my sunshine request. 

If you have any questions, please call me at 816-898-8465. 

Best Regards, 

~;/;/ ~ , 
/ I' Z.-~ W Larkey 

83 



Andrea Cunningham 

From: Andrea Cunningham 
Sent: 
To: 

Thursday, May 9, 2019 6:45 PM 
Michael Larkey 

Cc: Jeff Davis; Alexa Barton 
Subject: RE: (EXTERNAL) Re: sunshine request waiver received - Emerson Park Addition 

Thank you for your email. According to state statute, only the public governmental body has the authority to waive a 
records request fee. In this case, that is the City Council. 
I will put this item on the 5/14 council agenda. I will include your correspondence and reasoning for waiver. I will let you 
know on 5/15 what their decision is. 

Jlncfrea Cunningliam 
City Clerk 
506 Main Street, Belton MO 
P 816.892.1250 
F 816.322.4620 
www.belton.org 
*City Offices are closed on Wednesday, May 8, 2019 for Truman Day 

---------
From: Michael Larkey <michael.larkey@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2019 12:13 PM 
To: Andrea Cunningham <acunningham@belton.org> 
Cc: Jeff Davis <jdavis@belton.org>; Alexa Barton <ABarton@belton.org> 
Subject: (EXTERNAL) Re: sunshine request waiver received - Emerson Park Addition 

Thank you for your speedy response. 

The PO currently has two different Carriers delivering opposite sides of the same street. We are, at this time, trying to 
determine where the boundaries are between the Rural Carriers and the City Carriers. 

My request for the information will be used to determine those boundaries. 

This determination will allow for more efficient operations of the local PO. The efficient operations of any government 
organization is of significant interest to the public, therefore, I contend my request meets the criteria outlined in your 
response to warrant a wavier of your request fee. 

Best regards 
Mike Larkey 

Sent from my iPhone 

On May 7, 2019, at 2:40 PM, Andrea Cunningham <acunningham@belton.org> wrote: 

Michael 
Thank you for your letter requesting a waiver of the fees for your Sunshine request regarding Emerson 
Park addition plot plans. The Mayor received it and passed it along to me. 

84 

1 



The Missouri Sunshine Law allows a waiver to be made by the public governmental body when the 
documents requested are in the public interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public 
understanding of the operations or activities of the public governmental body and is not primarily in the 
commercial interest of the requester. It does not appear this request meets the criteria. 

We have the documents you requested ready for pick up at city hall. Due to the size of the documents, I 
am unable to email them and there would be an additional cost if I printed them off. I can supply them 
on a cd at no additional cost .. 

)1.ncfrea Cunningham 
City Clerk 
506 Main Street, Belton MO 
P 816.892.1250 
F 816.322.4620 
www.belton.org 
*City Offices are closed on Wednesday, May 8, 2019 for Truman Day 

85 

2 




	I.	CALL WORK SESSION TO ORDER 
	II.	ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION
	A.	Stormwater Management Program Plan Presentation
	III.	ADJOURN WORK SESSION
	IV.	CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
	VII.	CONSENT AGENDA
	A.	Motion approving the minutes of the April 23, 2019, City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting.
	Paperwork
	B.	Motion authorizing the sale of surplus city inventory/personal property by Mayo Auction & Realty.
	Paperwork
	C.	Motion authorizing the purchase of a DR3900 Spectrophotometer Micro Distillation Kit for $11,199.81. This purchase is included in the FY2020 budget.
	Paperwork
	D.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-41
A resolution authorizing and directing the Custodian of Records of the City of Belton, Missouri to destroy certain records that have exceeded the retention requirements as set forth by the State of Missouri.

	Paperwork
	E.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-42
A resolution approving Task Agreement No. 2020-1 with FTC Equipment, LLC to replace Service Pump #2 and purchase an additional backup pump for the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $22,607.36.

	Paperwork
	F.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-43
A resolution approving Task Agreement No. 2019-2 with JCI Industries, Inc. to replace the motor end shaft and bearings for Aerator #7 in the amount of $28,469.00.

	Paperwork
	G.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-44
A resolution reappointing George Shurm and Rusty Sullivan and appointing Zebadiah Morlok and Jennifer Garner to the Municipal Park Board.

	Paperwork
	H.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-45
A resolution appointing Directors to the Board of Directors of the Y Belton Two Community Improvement District.

	Paperwork
	I.	Motion approving Resolution R2019-46
A resolution authorizing an agreement with Opencities, Inc. for website publishing, management and hosting services for the City of Belton.

	Paperwork
	IX.	ORDINANCES
	A.	Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2019-26
An ordinance approving the Reappropriation & Revision of the City of Belton Fiscal Year 2020 adopted City Budget.	

	Paperwork
	B.	Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2019-27
An ordinance approving the Final Plat of Southview Commerce Center South 2nd Plat located NW ¼ and SW ¼, Sec, 1, T46n, R33w, in the City of Belton, Cass County, Missouri and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the plat for recording with the Cass County Recorder’s office.

	Paperwork
	XIV.	OTHER BUSINESS
	A.	Request for Records Fee Waiver
	Paperwork
	XV.	Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to negotiated contracts, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.12; matters pertaining to the leasing, purchase or sale of Real Estate, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.2; matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1; and matters pertaining to the hiring, firing, disciplining or promotion of personnel, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.3, and that the record be closed, and the meeting adjourn from there.



